
Alamogordo City Commission

 

NOTICE OF MEETING 
 

 

Addendum to 
Regular Meeting Agenda 

Tuesday, September 23, 2014 – 7:00 pm 
City Hall, City Commission Chambers 

1376 E. Ninth St. 
 

Susie Galea ...............................................................Mayor, At-Large 
Robert Rentschler......................................Mayor Pro-Tem, District 3 
Jason Baldwin...................................................................... District 1 
Nadia Sikes ...........................................................................District 2 
Jenny Turnbull ......................................................................District 4 
Al Hernandez .........................................................................District 5 
Dr. George Straface ............................................................ District 6 

 
Jim Stahle ..................................................................... City Manager 
Stephen Thies ............................................................... City Attorney 
Renee Cantin ...................................................................... City Clerk 

 
In accordance with Section 10-15-1.D, NMSA 1978 (2010 Cumulative Supplement), this agenda has been posted on the 
bulletin board located in the east/west lobby of the City Hall and in the glass case located outside a the north entrance of the 
City Hall, distributed to the appropriate news media, and posted on the City website:  http://ci.alamogordo.nm.us within the 
required time frame.  As a courtesy, the entire Agenda Packet has also been posted on the City of Alamogordo website:  
http://ci.alamogordo.nm.us 

The Mayor and City Commission request that all cell phones be turned off or set to vibrate.  Members of the audience are 
requested to step outside the Commission Chambers to respond to or to conduct a phone conversation.  The Alamogordo 
Commission Chambers is wheelchair accessible.  Other special assistance for disabled attendees must be requested 48 hours 
in advance by contacting the City Clerk’s Office at 575-439-4205.   

Addendum to Regular Meeting Agenda 
 
CONSENT AGENDA            
 
A-1. Consider and act upon a Memorandum of Understanding between the City and the American 

Federation of State, County, and Municipal Employees, Local 3818 ("AFSCME"). 
 
 



Alamogordo City Commission

 

NOTICE OF MEETING 
 

 

Regular Meeting Agenda 
September 23, 2014 – 7:00 pm 

City Hall, City Commission Chambers 
1376 E. Ninth St. 

 
Susie Galea ...............................................................................Mayor 
Robert Rentschler......................................Mayor Pro-Tem, District 3 
Jason Baldwin...................................................................... District 1 
Nadia Sikes ...........................................................................District 2 
Jenny Turnbull ......................................................................District 4 
Al Hernandez .........................................................................District 5 
Dr. George Straface ............................................................ District 6 

 
Jim Stahle ..................................................................... City Manager 
Stephen Thies ............................................................... City Attorney 
Renee Cantin ...................................................................... City Clerk 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

In accordance with Section 10-15-1.D, NMSA 1978 (2010 Cumulative Supplement), this agenda has been posted on the 
bulletin board located in the east/west lobby of the City Hall and in the glass case located outside a the north entrance of the 
City Hall, distributed to the appropriate news media, and posted on the City website:  http://ci.alamogordo.nm.us within the 
required time frame.  As a courtesy, the entire Agenda Packet has also been posted on the City of Alamogordo website:  
http://ci.alamogordo.nm.us 

The Mayor and City Commission request that all cell phones be turned off or set to vibrate.  Members of the audience are 
requested to step outside the Commission Chambers to respond to or to conduct a phone conversation.  The Alamogordo 
Commission Chambers is wheelchair accessible.  Other special assistance for disabled attendees must be requested 48 hours 
in advance by contacting the City Clerk’s Office at 575-439-4205.   

 
CALL TO ORDER & ROLL CALL          
Announce the presence of a Quorum. 
 

INVOCATION & PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE         
 
APPROVAL OF AGENDA            
 

PRESENTATIONS             
 
1. Presentation related to the All Natural Hazards Mitigation Plan including the kick-off discussion 

for development of a new plan. (Mikel Ward, Fire Chief) 

MISSION STATEMENT as Adopted by the City Commission on March 24, 1995. 
The City of Alamogordo is a Municipal Corporation that exists solely for the purpose of providing the best possible 
services to our customers, the citizens of Alamogordo. We are committed to providing these services with honesty, 
integrity, compassion, fairness, and a commitment to excellence.  

We are committed to the long-term financial stability and responsible growth of the City and all decisions will be driven by 
our commitment to provide the best services possible in a financially sound and responsible manner given the economic 
realities facing the City.    



September 23, 2014 City of Alamogordo Regular Meeting Agenda Page 2 of 3
 

 

 
PUBLIC COMMENT            
Residents must sign up with the City Clerk to address the City Commission. Comments are limited to 3 Minutes, and there will 
be a maximum of 21 Minutes allowed for Public Comment. 
 

CONSENT AGENDA  (Roll Call Vote Required for Items No. 5, 6, 7, & 8)      
All matters listed under the Consent Agenda are considered to be routine by the City Commission and will be enacted by one 
motion.  There will not be separate discussion of these items. If discussion is desired, that item will be removed from the 
Consent Agenda and will be considered separately. 
 
2. Approve Minutes of the September 9, 2014 Regular Meeting of the Alamogordo City Commission. 

(Renee Cantin, City Clerk) 
 
3. Approve the Lodger’s Tax Expenditures for Tourism & Travel. (Jan Wafful, CS Admin. Assistant) 
 
4. Approve a Special Dispenser Permit Application and a Temporary Alcoholic Beverage Dispenser’s 

License for Mister A, Inc. d/b/a Jerry’s Lounge/Kwik Stop for the Sunset Run Race on October 4th, 
2014 at Granada Center.  (Renee Cantin, City Clerk) 

 
5. Approve Resolution No. 2014-45 requesting written approval from the Local Government Division 

of the Department of Finance & Administration, State of New Mexico for the revised budget figures 
computed as of September 23, 2014. [Roll call vote required]  (LeeAnn Nichols, Finance Director) 

 
6. Approve Resolution No. 2014-52 to apply for a grant through the New Mexico Department of 

Transportation to complete the Master Plan for the Alamogordo White Sands Regional Airport. 
[Roll call vote required]  (Matt McNeile, Assistant City Manager) 

 
7. Approve Resolution No. 2014-53 approving a Grant Agreement between the City of Alamogordo 

and the US Department of Agriculture (USDA), Forest Service Collaborative Forest Restoration 
Planning Grant in the amount of $445,629.00 to conduct a National Environmental Policy Act 
(NEPA) Environmental Impact Study for the Westside Sacramento Mountains Planning Project. 
[Roll call vote required] (Ruben Segura, Grants Coordinator) 

 
8. Approve the final publication of Ordinance No. 1473 amending the official zoning map of the City 

of Alamogordo, changing the classification of Ridge View Lot 2 (2118 North Florida Avenue) from 
its present zoning district of C-3, Business District to MH-2, Manufactured Housing/ Recreational 
Vehicle Park District. (Case # Z-2014-0003(A)). [Roll call vote required] (Renee Cantin, City Clerk) 

 
9. Approve the Agreements with Otero County for Senior Center, related to Transportation, Meals on 

Wheels/La Luz and RSVP Services. (Veronica Ortega, Senior Center Manager) 
 
10. Approve the Intergovernmental Services Agreement between the Alamogordo Public School 

District and the City of Alamogordo regarding the reciprocal use of lands, facilities and equipment 
owned by each entity. (Matt McNeile, Assistant City Manager) 

 
11. Approve an Application for participation in the Fire Protection Fund Grant FY 2015 for the 

Alamogordo Fire Department for an amount up to $100,000.  (Mikel Ward, Fire Chief) 
 
12. Approve the award of RFP No. 2014-006 for Uniformed, Unarmed Security Guard Services to 

Alamo Security. (Matt McNeile, Assistant City Manager) 
 
13. Approve the Proposed Changes to Roadway Functional Classifications, per NMDOT Manual. 

(Nancy Beshaler, Project Manager) 
 
A-1. Consider and act upon a Memorandum of Understanding between the City and the American 

Federation of State, County, and Municipal Employees, Local 3818 ("AFSCME"). 
 

ITEMS REMOVED FROM CONSENT AGENDA         

 



September 23, 2014 City of Alamogordo Regular Meeting Agenda Page 3 of 3
 

 

PUBLIC HEARINGS            
 
14. Hold Public Hearing, consider, and act upon, Application No. A-911555 to grant a Transfer of 

Location for Retailer Liquor License #4020 Application No. A-911555 for Albertson’s LLC d/b/a 
Albertson’s #1053, located at 1300 Tenth St., Alamogordo, NM. (Renee Cantin, City Clerk) 

 

UNFINISHED BUSINESS            
 
15. Consider, and act upon, a one (1) year extension of the Agreement between the City of 

Alamogordo, New Mexico and Zia Therapy Center, Inc. for Public Transportation Services in 
accordance with Section 3 of the agreement in an amount not to exceed $99,989.00 for the Fixed 
Route Services and $10,000 for the Las Cruces Route Program. (Ruben Segura, Grants Coordinator) 

 

NEW BUSINESS             
 
16. Discussion, and possible action, related to the culverts located North of 24th Street in the Dry 

Canyon Arroyo.  (Jim Randall, Requestor) 
 
17. Consider, and act upon, a request to release a utility lien filed in 2008 for the property located at 

1408 Challenger Avenue.  (Stephen Thies, City Attorney) 
 
18. Notification of Boards & Committees Vacancies.  (Susie Galea, Mayor) 
 

PUBLIC COMMENT  (Continued if needed)        
 

CITY MANAGER’S REPORT           
 

REMARKS AND INQUIRIES BY THE CITY COMMISSION      
 

EXECUTIVE SESSION (Roll Call Vote Required)         
Adjourn into Closed Session in compliance with Section 10-15-1.H, NMSA 1978 (2010 Cumulative Supplement), to discuss: 
 

  Purchase of Real Property (Lot 2B, Industry Center Subdivision, Replat B). 
 

ADJOURNMENT             







 

 
 

CITY OF ALAMOGORDO, NEW MEXICO 
CITY COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING MINUTES 

7:00 P.M., COMMISSION CHAMBERS 
SEPTEMBER 9, 2014 

 
SUSIE GALEA, MAYOR    ROBERT RENTSCHLER, MAYOR PRO-TEM 
JASON BALDWIN, COMMISSIONER  DR. GEORGE STRAFACE, COMMISSIONER 
NADIA SIKES, COMMISSIONER   JIM STAHLE, CITY MANAGER 
JENNY TURNBULL, COMMISSIONER  STEPHEN THIES, CITY ATTORNEY 
AL HERNANDEZ, COMMISSIONER  RENEE CANTIN, CITY CLERK 
 
  

CALL TO ORDER & ROLL CALL 
 
Mayor Galea called the meeting to order at 7:00 p.m. Roll Call was taken by the City Clerk.  Clerk 
Cantin announced there was a quorum present.   Invocation by Reverend James Forney and the 
Pledge of Allegiance was led by Commissioner Straface. 
 

INVOCATION & PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 
Reverend James Forney gave the invocation followed by the Pledge of Allegiance led by Commissioner 
Straface. 
 
APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
 
Commissioner Straface moved to approve adding the addendum to the agenda.  Mayor Pro-Tem 
Rentschler seconded the motion.  Motion carried by a vote of 7-0-0. 
 
Mayor Pro-Tem Rentschler moved to approve the agenda.  Commissioner Baldwin seconded the 
motion. 
Motion carried by a vote of 7-0-0. 
 

PRESENTATIONS 
 
1. Presentation by the New Mexico Museum of Space History related to the IMAX      

Improvements Project. (Chris Orwoll, Executive Director) 
 
Mr. Chris Orwoll addressed the commission.  (Power Point presentation is in the Agenda Book)  He 
thanked the commission for considering the Museum in the first place, and then gave an overview of 
work done to the Museum to date and that which is scheduled.  The goal with the IMAX theatre 
upgrade is to see an increase in visitation.  In Fall 2012 a Needs Assessment was done by the NMMSH 
staff and November 20, 2012, they gave a presentation to the City Commission.  On January 28, 2013, 
the City Commission approved $300,000 in Quality of Life funds for the upgrade of the theatre at 
NMMSH, and April 5, 2013, Senate Bill 60 was passed by the NM Legislature that granted $500,000 
toward the upgrade of the theatre and facilities.  He showed the list of ongoing projects at the Museum.  
The projected start date for the theatre upgrade is October 2014, and the projected start date for the 
planetarium upgrade is January 2015. He showed the total cost breakdown of items and materials 
needed for the theatre/planetarium upgrades.  He noted that the paint color being used is call 
Smithsonian Blue and is the color used at the Smithsonian Museum, with whom this museum is 
affiliated. 
 
Mayor Pro-Tem Rentschler commented that the Space Hall and Theatre have been one of the jewels of 
Alamogordo, and he was thankful that the commission was able help with this.  He asked which digital 



SEPTEMBER 9, 2014 CITY OF ALAMOGORDO REGULAR MEETING MINUTES PAGE 2 OF 28 

 
theatre projection equipment would be used in the upgrade.  Mr. Orwoll said IMAX was one of the 
brands available, but they have not even come out with their digital projection system and did not know 
when it would be available.  Also, their cost was higher than other brands.  He said they would be 
installing a digital projection system similar to what many museum theatres throughout the United State 
are using, especially those with domes.  Mr. Orwoll noted this is the smallest IMAX (giant screen) 
Theatre in the world.  With this system, they could host film festivals as well as show the IMAX films. 
 
Mr. Orwoll commented that the Department of Finance, the Legislative Finance Committee and 
legislators recognized that the City stepped up first.  
 
Commissioner Straface asked Mr. Orwoll if he was doing the leadership of the project management or if 
it was contracted out.  Mr. Orwoll said it fell under his control, but he would be selecting contractors 
who would come in and do all of their own installation.  When they get to the dome portion of the 
projects, they will have a project manager on site who will be working directly with him.   
 
Commissioner Straface asked if those costs were included in these numbers and Mr. Orwoll affirmed 
they were.   
 

PUBLIC COMMENT 
 
Mayor Galea noted most of the people who had signed up wished to speak at the time of the agenda 
item they were concerned with. 
 
A.  Sharon McDonald commented on the following: 
Sharon McDonald commented regarding improvements on the First Street and Florida Ave. project 
timeline.  She had been told her parents’ home is one of those recommended for demolition for this 
project. Her parents are in their 80’s and have been in that house since she was nine years old, so she 
wanted to be a part of this project and know all the aspects.  She would like to know how long it will 
take and when it will start, so they would be prepared to make other arrangements for her parents to be 
in a secured area.  That neighborhood has been great and they have not had any problems, and she 
wanted to make sure her parents have a safe environment to live in.  She had been in contact with 
Nancy (Beshaler) concerning this project. 
 
City Manager Stahle responded it had not been decided how the realignment of that intersection would 
take place, and we will be involved with public information in order to let the community know of ideas.  
The commission will have to choose the plan they feel most prudent for the City.  This will take 
anywhere from 18 months to two years to complete, so he didn’t want Ms. McDonald’s parents to be 
too worried about whether homes will be taken at this stage.  He was glad to hear Nancy (Beshaler) 
had been in touch with her, but he didn’t want her to feel it was a done deal that her parents would be 
moved.   
 

CONSENT AGENDA   
 
2. Approve Minutes of the August 19 and August 21, 2014 Special Meetings and the August 

25, 2014 Meeting of the Alamogordo City Commission. (Renee Cantin, City Clerk) 
 
3. Approve the Agreement with Alamogordo Public Schools related to School Resource 

Officers. (Robert Duncan, Police Chief) 
 
4. Approve Resolution No. 2014-44 approving the submission of an application to the New 

Mexico Department of Transportation – Aviation Division for maintenance at the 
Alamogordo – White Sands Regional Airport, in the amount of $11,110 with a required 
match of $1,111. [Roll call vote required] (Matt McNeile, Assistant City Manager) 

 



SEPTEMBER 9, 2014 CITY OF ALAMOGORDO REGULAR MEETING MINUTES PAGE 3 OF 28 

 
5. Approve the award of IFB No. 2014-05 to Basin Air, Inc. related to the HVAC Replacement 

– Alamogordo Senior Center project, in an amount not to exceed $38,726.05, including 
tax.  (Matt McNeile, Assistant City Manager) 

 
6. Approve the award of RFQ No. 2014-03 for Engineering and Design Services to 

Livingston Associates, P.C. for the Water Service Line Replacement – White Sands Blvd. 
project. (Edward Balderrama, Project Manager) 

 
8. Approve the incorporation into the minutes of the Governing Body the final approval by 

the NM Department of Finance and Administration of the City’s final budget for the 2014-
2015 Fiscal Year. (Renee Cantin, City Clerk) 

 
A-2. Approve Resolution No. 2014-47 approving the New Mexico Department of Tourism Litter 

Control and Beautification grant in the amount of $12,000. [Roll call vote required] (Matt 
McNeile, Assistant City Manager) 

 
A-3. Approve Resolution No. 2014-48 approving a Grant Agreement between the City of 

Alamogordo and the New Mexico Department of Finance and Administration for Special 
Appropriation Project No. 14-L-1958 in the amount of $25,000 for the Domestic Violence 
HVAC System Project. [Roll call vote required] (Ruben Segura, Grants Coordinator) 

 
A-4. Approve Resolution No. 2014-49 approving a Grant Agreement between the City of 

Alamogordo and the New Mexico Department of Finance and Administration for Special 
Appropriation Project No. 14-L-1959 in the amount of $100,000 for the Family Recreation 
Center Restroom Project. [Roll call vote required] (Ruben Segura, Grants Coordinator) 

 
A-5. Approve Resolution No. 2014-50 approving a Grant Agreement between the City of 

Alamogordo and the New Mexico Department of Finance and Administration for Special 
Appropriation Project No. 14-L-1959 in the amount of $200,000 for the purchase and 
equipping of vehicles for the Alamogordo Police Department. [Roll call vote required] 
(Ruben Segura, Grants Coordinator) 

 
A-6. Approve Resolution 2014-51 to apply for an FAA Grant to construct the 2200’ runway 

extension at the White Sands Regional Airport in an amount up to $6.2 million. [Roll call 
vote required] (Matt McNeile, Assistant City Manager) 

 
Commissioner Hernandez asked to remove Items 7 and A-1. 
 
Commissioner Hernandez moved to approve items # 2, 3, 4, 5, 6, 8, A-2, A-3, A-4, A-5, A-6 of the 
consent calendar.  Commissioner Straface seconded the motion.  Roll call was taken for items 
#4, A-2, A-3, A-4, A-5, A-6.  Motion carried with a vote of 7-0-0. 
 
ITEMS REMOVED FROM CONSENT AGENDA  

 
7. Approve the award of RFQ No. 2014-06 for Architectural, Engineering, and Design 

Services to Lee Gamelsky Architects P.C. for the Family Entertainment Center project 
and approve negotiation of the professional Architectural Services Agreement.  (Matt 
McNeile, Assistant City Manager) 

 
Commissioner Hernandez said he wanted to speak about this and give an update on the project.  He 
had many questions from constituents so asked that the city manager give an overview tonight.  
Commissioner Hernandez did not have a problem with the RFQ itself, he simply wanted an update on 
the project. 
 



SEPTEMBER 9, 2014 CITY OF ALAMOGORDO REGULAR MEETING MINUTES PAGE 4 OF 28 

 
City Manager Stahle spoke to this and said we have progressed through the bond package for the 
voters and we are at the stage of awarding the architectural contract.  He said it is important to 
recognize there is a lot to do in order to pre-plan the construction of a building.  Specifically, we want to 
know what the foot print would be of such a facility, what would be in it, etc.  First and most important of 
the architects work would be to meet with the community and commissioners in order to figure out what 
would make the most sense for this market.  We know there will be bowling; how many lanes?  A study 
suggested 24 lanes would be a competition problem for the facility at HAFB.  We may still build 24 
because we’ve heard from folks in leagues that is an important number.  What other things will be in 
this?  He was confident there would be some sort of an arcade probably targeting the younger kids; 
miniature golf or some kind of laser tag; some kind of food establishment with restaurant and bar 
facilities.  Then we have to address the outside.  There is some interest for recreational activities on the 
outside, as well, so that is a large part of what the architect will be working on; a layout you can be 
proud of.  After that, they have to put the hard work in to actually design the facility.  This, too, will be a 
long term project, probably longer than the intersection.  One of the challenges you all need to help us 
figure out will be how will it be operated; create an LLC much like the folks in Deming did, our own staff 
run it, or contract it all out.  Another possibility is to have just the restaurant facility contracted out and 
maybe some of the other concessions, in particular the video games and that sort of thing.  Once you 
all give the blessing as to what you want built, then they have to do the actual architectural work.  While 
the construction is going on, we need to start focusing in on some advertising and some resolutions to 
various topics like who will run it and how will it be run.  He wasn’t expecting this facility to be 
operational for at least 18 months and more realistically, two years.  It could be faster depending on 
how quickly we get through the public discussion.  We want to make our community proud of the look of 
the facility, as well.  The actual location is by the movie theatre which you can see from all around, so 
we want it to be fairly good looking and fit into that particular portion of the city.  Again, this will take in 
the neighborhood of a couple of years. 
 
Commissioner Hernandez moved to approve the award of RFQ No. 2014-06 for Architectural, 
Engineering, and Design Services to Lee Gamelsky Architects P.C. for the Family Entertainment 
Center project and approve negotiation of the professional Architectural Services Agreement. 
Commissioner Turnbull seconded.  Motion passed with a vote of 7-0-0. 
 
    
A-1.     Approve a one (1) year extension of the Agreement between the City of Alamogordo, New 

Mexico and Zia Therapy Center, Inc. for Public Transportation Services in accordance 
with Section 3 of the agreement in an amount not to exceed $99,989.00 for the Fixed 
Route Services and $10,000 for the Pilot Program. (Ruben Segura, Grants Coordinator) 

 
Commissioner Hernandez remarked he had pulled this one off because he remembered when we first 
did the pilot program it was a one year thing.  He believed this was the third time we had funded this 
$10,000, and he didn’t see it as a pilot program any longer.  He said he could support the $109,000, but 
could not support the $10,000.  
 
Commissioner Sikes appreciated what he said.  She asked Grants Coordinator, Ruben Segura, that 
since it had a large ridership, was successful and accommodated both those with medical situations as 
well as students, couldn’t we change the name from pilot program to simply program. 
 
Grants Coordinator Segura said it becomes an official program when the commission so desires.  
Commissioner Sikes asked what she needed to do in order to do that.  Grants Coordinator Segura said 
to integrate it into one transportation program.  Commissioner Sikes asked if we needed to approve this 
item and then make a motion to make it a permanent program.   
 
City Manager Stahle recommended that if it were to pass tonight as presented, you could then direct us 
to incorporate that particular element of the contract into the regular contract for next year. 
 



SEPTEMBER 9, 2014 CITY OF ALAMOGORDO REGULAR MEETING MINUTES PAGE 5 OF 28 

 
Mayor Galea said she understood it was a pilot program in 2012, and since it began there are now over 
600 riders per month for students, medical and other needs.  She found it to be a successful program 
and didn’t understand why there wouldn’t be an opportunity to keep our students and those who need 
additional medical services at home in the City of Alamogordo so they don’t have to go to Las Cruces. 
 
Commissioner Straface asked the city manager if it could be incorporated in this motion and not wait a 
year.  The city manager said there would not be a problem with that.  Commissioner Straface said to 
motion $109,000 plus for this, and move forward.  
 
Commissioner Hernandez said his biggest problem was it was a pilot program and requested for one 
year.  He didn’t have a problem helping people out, but he had a problem with not being up front and 
saying this is what we’re doing.   
 
Commissioner Straface felt it could be corrected right now, and Mayor Galea said it could be corrected 
in a motion. 
 
City Manager Stahle said when you do a pilot program it usually takes several years to decide whether 
it is worth it.  Several of you have indicated you are comfortable with it; it is up to you to handle it any 
way you want.   
 
Commissioner Straface asked the city manager if an evaluation had been made of the pilot program.  
City Manager Stahle said we know what the rideship is, and it is mostly students with some folks 
needing medical.  It is open to anyone of course, and it is up to you to judge whether it is successful or 
not.  
 
Mayor Pro-Tem Rentschler also remembered this being a one year pilot program, and we had 
suggested the ridership pay for this.  Instead of making a motion, he would rather vote on them 
separately and combine it later; the $99,989 and then the $10,000 and see where it lies.  He thought 
there was a plan for the $10,000 to gradually go away, and he would be much more willing to support it 
that way.   
 
Commissioner Baldwin said we had been very specific at the time about it being a one time deal, and 
not come back for any additional money.  It was his understanding that the $10,000 was a portion of 
funding coming from other communities, as well.  Grants Coordinator Segura said part of the 
contribution comes also from Federal funds from the pilot project, so it is a part of a matching.   
 
Commissioner Baldwin said he was very excited about the program and was eager to vote yes to help it 
get up and running, and our statements were that if it was successful it should be able to pay for itself.  
Mayor Pro-Tem Rentschler had mentioned there was a plan put in place to possibly raise the ridership 
fee and other things to alleviate our $10,000, but Commissioner Baldwin said he had not seen that 
plan.  He had an issue of this coming back three times in a row as a pilot program when it was originally 
voted as a one-time deal.  He agreed with Mayor Pro-Tem Rentschler to vote on the original $109,000 
and then the $10,000 in an additional motion. 
 
Commissioner Sikes said we approved it the first year. The second year we discussed raising the 
ridership rate, and they did; we have not seen a report on whether raising the rate made an impact on 
the program.  The one thing we have to keep in mind is there are very few transportation programs on 
the planet that pay for themselves; they are all subsidized.  This is nice to have for our community and 
if we don’t fund it, how many people will be effected?  She would like to see the impact of the raise in 
ticket prices.   
 
Mayor Galea said the City does subsidize it with the Department of Transportation, but also with the 
Southeastern Regional Transit District through Las Cruces.   
 



SEPTEMBER 9, 2014 CITY OF ALAMOGORDO REGULAR MEETING MINUTES PAGE 6 OF 28 

 
Mayor Pro-Tem Rentschler said we have been talking about what we don’t know about this $10,000 
portion of the program to Las Cruces, and he suggested we should table the $10,000 part until we can 
get a proper report on how it is being spent and what the impacts are, and if it would eventually go 
away.   
 
Mayor Galea said we know that at the height of the ridership to Las Cruces they have 600 riders a 
month.  If there is not ridership to Las Cruces then those people would perhaps be forced to move to 
receive those services.   
 
Mayor Pro-Tem Rentschler said he understood that, but would like to see the numbers and figures.  He 
was certainly in favor of approving the $100,000 for public transportation right now, but would like to 
see a separate presentation on this so we could have all the ridership numbers, the total costs provided 
by us and provided by other entities.  This would give us a feel of where it is and help us decide 
whether to raise it to $110,000. 
 
Commissioner Hernandez clarified it is $109,989 total; $99,000 for the fixed route and the $10,000 for 
the pilot program.  He noted he didn’t have a problem helping people out and funding the ride, but he 
would like to have a report from Zia in order to see if they still need the $10,000 now and in the future.  
We were very specific about only doing this one year and this would be the third time we’ve funded this.  
We have two options: we can vote on it or we can table the $10,000 portion of it. 
 
Grants Coordinator Segura apologized that he didn’t have the figures with him.  He was of the 
assumption the commission had already approved the budget. 
 
Mayor Galea appreciated that we should have all the facts and data, but she didn’t see this as a way of 
helping people out; she saw it as a way of improving our economy through an intermodal system.  If we 
don’t provide this service, then people cannot live here and receive the same services through the 
public service system.  They would have to move to Las Cruces and we don’t want that. 
 
City Manager Stahle pointed out the pilot project was integrated into this contract so if you want a 
detailed report at the next meeting, he thought it best to table the whole thing and wait for that report.  
We can ask Zia Therapy to show up and talk to you. 
 
Commissioner Hernandez suggested completely redoing how this was done.  If we are sending people 
out of town, he didn’t want to do that.  If 99% is medical, there are other ways to pay for it.  It is $10,000 
of the taxpayers’ dollars and is a lot of money, so we need to be very specific of what it is doing, where 
it is, and what the cost benefit is to Alamogordo. 
 
Commissioner Hernandez moved to table the item until the next meeting or until they (Zia 
Therapy) are prepared to do a presentation.  Mayor Pro-Tem Rentschler seconded the motion.  
Motion carried by a vote of 5-2-0. Commissioner Straface and Mayor Galea voted nay. 
 
NEW BUSINESS 
 
 9. Discussion, consider, and act upon, a policy of repairs to water meter infrastructure 

related to the Advanced Metering Infrastructure System (Radio Read) Project. (Robert 
Rentschler, Requestor and LeeAnn Nichols, Finance Director) 

 
Finance Director Nichols told the commission the Staff had been asked to give an update on the 
number of breaks and other issues related to the Radio Read system.  In addition, Staff was asked to 
explain about the timeframe that would cover these issues after the installation.  The City’s records 
show 57 repairs which is just under 3% of the total 1,961 meters that have been installed to date.  Of 
those, 35 repairs were on the city side of the meter and 22 breaks on the customer side.  There were 
six call-backs for water turn on.  For coverage of that in the contract, Zenner will cover for 90 days after 



SEPTEMBER 9, 2014 CITY OF ALAMOGORDO REGULAR MEETING MINUTES PAGE 7 OF 28 

 
the City has notified them of the installation; the contractor will cover 90 days of that install.  If there is a 
problem, issue, breakage or leak due to the installation of the meter, the contractor will be responsible 
for that up to 90 days.  They are also on call 24/7 for those installations for 90 days.   
 
When we first started this project, the contractor was just installing and then reporting breaks.  We’ve 
changed that so that the contract calls for the contractor to inspect the meter before installation, to 
determine if there will be any issues when the installation is made.  If they feel there will be a break or a 
leak by installing that meter, they are to call the utility inspector of the City.  That inspector will evaluate 
the meter and decide if it can be installed; if so, we will give the contractor the authorization to proceed.  
If that happens and the contractor proceeds and there is a break or leak, then it becomes the City’s 
issue.  If the contractor decides after the meter has been evaluated that they can make that exchange 
without compromising the system, then they will do it.  If there is a leak or break, it becomes the 
responsibility of the contractor.  
 
Mayor Pro-Tem Rentschler said the reason he had asked for this was the fact he had a break on the 
consumer side and had a water bill for $1,200.  It seemed like we were hearing rumors about the 
contractors doing this and he was getting phone calls from various people with this same problem.  
There was a point in the beginning this contractor hired someone who may or may not have been up 
front about breaking a meter and would leave the area rather than report it.  That is the main reason he 
wanted this in here because he wanted everyone to understand these are the reported breaks.  He 
asked who the prime contractor was on this, and Finance Director Nichols told him it was Zenner USA 
out of Addison, TX, and they were in attendance.  The primary sub-contractor is Lane Plumbing and 
Darnold Plumbing is sub-contracted through Lane Plumbing.   
 
Mayor Pro-Tem Rentschler said he had heard there had been problems with the ones originally hired to 
do this, true or false?  Finance Director Nichols told him there was an issue and the sub-contractor took 
care of it right away.  They did hire some laborers to do some of these installs who were not qualified 
and were making mistakes; they got rid of them very quickly.  She said both the City of Alamogordo 
Utility Maintenance Department and Darnold Plumbing are keeping records of breaks; Darnold 
Plumbing is taking responsibility for the breaks.  Ms. Nichols said she worked on taking Darnold’s report 
of breaks and leaks and compared it to the Utility Maintenance Report of breaks and leaks, and she 
found they did not match.  Utility Maintenance had a record of 57 breaks and Darnold had a record of 
126 breaks.  After she reviewed all again and removed any duplicates, it came to a total of 109. 
Darnold’s report as opposed to the Utility Maintenance report for breaks which are the responsibility of 
Zenner do match.  We are keeping track of what they are responsible for, which includes if they have 
non-qualified people installing the meters, and they have taken that responsibility.   
 
Mayor Pro-Tem Rentschler said that is what he is trying to get to, to make sure the entire city 
understands there have been problems with these installations, and we want them to know there is at 
least a possibility the contractor or the city may take some responsibility for that.   
 
Finance Director Nichols pointed out that Mayor Pro-Tem Rentschler’s  break/leak occurred on July 14th 
and the meter was installed on July 31st.  She didn’t want to misrepresent that every break/leak that 
happens during this meter installation is necessarily attributable to the installation of the meters.  We do 
have utility inspectors with the city that will be doing inspections and they will be determining if that leak 
was caused by the installation or because of some other issue.   
 
Mayor Pro-Tem Rentschler said he couldn’t prove that had happened at his break, but it was right at 
the meter.  Right after that is when he began to get phone calls from around the neighborhood.  He felt 
his was probably not related to the meter installation, but there were others that would and would not 
be.   
 
Finance Director Nichols pointed out the Public Works  Dept. is aware that along with this installation, 
knowing there is some older and fragile piping, we expected to have some breaks and it was budgeted 
for.  We want to keep a good record between the contractor, Utility Maintenance, Public Works and 



SEPTEMBER 9, 2014 CITY OF ALAMOGORDO REGULAR MEETING MINUTES PAGE 8 OF 28 

 
Utility Billing in order to determine the cost of that, whether it is because of the installation or the older, 
more fragile pipes in the older parts of town.   
 
Commissioner Straface asked the city manager about the agenda wording and what we would be 
acting upon.  Finance Director Nichols said she could answer that.  When Mayor Pro-Tem Rentschler 
asked her to get this information together he asked about policy.  She thought he was asking for this 
item to be discussed so that the commission can understand how this project is working.   
 
Commissioner Straface asked if we were going to be acting on a policy for repair, and the city manager 
said no.  
 
Finance Director Nichols introduced the contractors in order for them to give a short presentation. 
 
Mr. Mark Green from the Zenner Company explained that to date they had about 3,000 meters in the 
ground.  He displayed on the overhead the readings from the meters already in the ground.  To date 
they are able to read a little over 99% of all meters in the ground, and are getting good feed-back.  We 
can detect issues and he looked at the leak alerts on the customer side; he explained how it works.  He 
next showed some sample reads and how to read the report.  Mr. Green explained infrastructure had 
been placed around town on city facilities (see pictures in agenda book), and then explained how the 
process works.  They are about 99% done with Cycle 1, with the exception of a few repairs that need to 
be done on the city side, and scheduling issues with larger meters such as at the College and Space 
Hall Museum.  Cycle 2 is about the same; we have had to stop Cycle 3 because we are pursuing a 
resolution to the inspection issue.  This was at the request of the City and Zenner so we could find a 
good solution.  He referred these issues to a representative of Darnold Plumbing. 
 
Abraham Moore of Darnold Plumbing came forward to address any questions. 
 
Mayor Pro-Tem Rentschler asked him about the size of the new meters, and that they were slightly 
larger than the original meters.  Mr. Moore said there were several different manufacturers of meters, 
and some were slightly bigger than those in the ground.  He said the City Water Dept. could tell you 
more, but what they had run into was that it was very rare they have the Neptune that is a little bigger.  
So, if we pull a meter that is 7” long and we have a meter 7.5” long, that is giving us some issues.   
 
Mr. Mark Green showed a slide of that.  He showed an older census meter and a new Zenner meter 
that is slightly longer.  The Zenner meters are at the current standard so they do comply with all 
standards set on the meter sizes.  Whatever was put in years back, may not have been up to standard 
at that time. 
   
10.   Consider, and act upon, the dispensation of the Atari Cartridges and approve the 
agreement    with the TBHS. (Brian Cesar, Public Works Director) 
 
Public Works Director Cesar told the commission the last time this had come before the commission he 
had been asked to come up with a plan of action to distribute the games and other materials taken from 
the old Alamogordo landfill.  He pointed out the proposed agreement in the agenda packet between the 
City, the Tularosa Basin Historical Society (TBHS) and the NMMSH.  There was also a proposed 
certificate of authenticity and a plan of action. 
 
Mayor Pro-Tem Rentschler asked the condition of all these items, whether there were any 
contamination concerns and if we were testing them.  Public Works Director Cesar said the games 
were just like they had been when removed from the landfill.   
 
Mr. Joe Lewandowski addressed Mayor Pro-Tem Rentschler’s question about the cartridges.  He didn’t 
see any reason to have them tested, but if the commission felt differently, they could do so.  They had 
spent over $12,000 in environmental sampling and nothing in this cell was hazardous.  If it had been, 



SEPTEMBER 9, 2014 CITY OF ALAMOGORDO REGULAR MEETING MINUTES PAGE 9 OF 28 

 
they would not have been allowed to go into the cell.  It is up to the city if they want to test them, but he 
had not found any reason to do so.   
 
Mayor Galea reiterated that the vapor testing was done to the cell, as well, so if it were contaminated 
these games would have been contaminated.  Mr. Lewandowski agreed, but said there had not been 
any testing done to the individual cartridges. 
 
Commissioner Straface read from the plan under September 30th, ‘The process procedure for the 
release will be presented to the city manager or the city commission for approval to proceed.’  He 
interpreted that it may go to City Manager Stahle and we may not be involved in the decision. 
 
Mr. Lewandowski responded the thought was to not have to come back to the commission every time 
there was movement of the games.  He recommended anything major, so the final approval to proceed 
would come to the commission.  All the cartridges are owned by the City of Alamogordo, and we have a 
request from a museum in Rome, Italy for a donation.  He then said he would talk to this commission as 
the vice-president of TBHS, saying the TBHS would not send anything to Rome, Italy without the 
commissioners’ permission; the agreement says you have to approve something like that. 
 
Commissioner Straface simply wanted the process clarified so someone couldn’t contest anything in 
the future.  He remarked he was fine with the city manager approving that, and simply wanted everyone 
to be aware of that condition. 
 
Mayor Pro-Tem Rentschler asked if the value of the games had been determined.  Mr. Lewandowski 
said no.  Part of the problem was that this is a unique situation.  They are worth $9.00 apiece on EBay 
but those aren’t a part of this legend, and there are a limited number.  There are 792,000 down there 
and we got 1,300 out; 100 went to the film company, and this increased the value of the available ones.  
He knew there had been a $500 offer for an E.T. cartridge.  The primary goal is they go into museums 
in order to tell the story. The second recommendation is the City keep a certain number in inventory for 
whatever you decide to do in the future, and the balance will be what you decide to release.  He 
recommended releasing them in three separate auctions, because there isn’t a set number on them.  
He had some recommendations for a minimum bid and see how those 400 sell.  The second round 
would have less than the first round, and by the third round, the last chance to get one, the prices would 
probably escalate.  This gradual release was the recommendation.  He said they definitely would not be 
releasing Pele soccer and some others with historical value; these would stay in the inventory for 
museums.  We would possibly release a few to the museum in Rome and some to NMMSH; you would 
not be giving any to museums, you would simply be loaning for display. 
 
Mayor Pro-Tem Rentschler asked if there was a problem with the Anti-Donation Clause, and Mr. 
Lewandowski said there was not, since you are not giving them to TBHS; we are simply holding and 
taking care of them for you.  We will work with the NMMSH staff to catalog, inventory, seal them in bags 
and then they would be locked up at the Museum.  We would submit a request to remove them if a 
request came to us.  When some are sold you will be getting money back for them so it would not be in 
violation of the Anti-Donation Clause.   
 
Commissioner Hernandez moved to approve the agreement with TBHS. Seconded by 
Commissioner Baldwin.  Motion passed with a vote of 7-0-0. 
 
    
11. Consider, and act upon, the approval of Out of State Travel for the Mayor to attend the 

Association of the United States Army on October 13-15, 2014 in Washington, D.C. (Susie 
Galea, Requestor) 

 
Mr. Harv Hamilton addressed the commission on this item.  He said that since January of last year he 
has attended almost all of the commission meetings and has received hardcopy minutes of all the 
meetings.  He felt he had a pretty good idea of how the city commission members should interact 



SEPTEMBER 9, 2014 CITY OF ALAMOGORDO REGULAR MEETING MINUTES PAGE 10 OF 28 

 
between themselves, the City Staff and the media.  He was present when the last commission set limits 
on what money it’s members could get for travel and where they could receive reimbursements.  He 
had a good idea of what could be discussed at Executive Sessions and what they could and could not 
reveal from those sessions.  He has seen at least one staff member ridiculed and insulted here, and if I 
had been in his place, I would have told the commission where to stick it, but I don’t have to worry 
about putting food on the table.  This is not Chicago, it is not New York.  The City Commission as a 
whole makes policy and supervises its only employee, the city manager.  If four of you decide to you 
can fire him tonight then he would be gone.  A lot of people out here and the ones I’ve talked to don’t 
understand that.  The city manager is the one who manages the staff day to day and if there are any 
problems with how he manages it, the commission as a whole needs to get together on it; it can’t be 
just one person, and I don’t think I misunderstand that.  A couple of weeks ago I read an article in the 
local newspaper that should not have contained some items and should have contained or pointed out 
others.  Today’s commentary by the mayor makes me believe she should resign if she doesn’t 
understand and have commission members understand what her job is.  Other commissions here, I 
would think, are in the position to sue her for some of the things she has done of late.  A previous 
article reminded me of how I began to distrust the media during the 38 months I was receiving combat 
pay going to Vietnam.  I extended twice for a year; they wouldn’t let me extend for the third time.  I 
blame the media for extending or prolonging that war, and many of the deaths and destruction that 
happened because of the media, not just the people who were the war protesters, but they were led by 
the media.  Now, I’m not saying you can compare this article with Vietnam, but it hit this small city just 
as much like a bomb as Vietnam did, and it has caused a lot of dissention and upset, some of which I 
saw yesterday at the Fire Chat meeting.  It was apparent at that meeting most of the people don’t 
understand how the commission works and how the city works.  I wonder why the Mayor ran for office 
because she knew the rules; she sat on the last commission and it just doesn’t make sense to me that 
given that knowledge she should be pushing people around or making the comments she should.   I 
don’t think the media should be asking her questions.  The city doesn’t have the money to finance 
whims of commissioners or the mayor.  They don’t really have an awful lot of money to spare for 
anything.  In those articles, one of the cardinal rules of leaders and management was broken, and that 
is praise in public/criticize in private.  Since the commission includes public officials, that doesn’t apply.  
I base these comments on the following: four years of ROTC, 22.5 years of service in the military, 
earning a Masters in Human Resources Management, teaching Leadership and Management to 
military for five years at HAFB to new and mid-grade sergeants, supervising groups of more than 100 
and giving intelligence briefings to more than 50 air-crew members and other military units, and they’re 
tough to deal with because they are sharp, being on briefing teams for generals, briefing other chief 
generals including Secretary of Defense McNamara and running a business and supervising people in 
other businesses.  Having good ideas does not give the Mayor the right to run roughshod over people 
and the rules.  She isn’t the only one who can get things done and she seems to think she has to be 
that.  As the city government is presently organized, and I said yesterday the mayor is kind of like a 
figurehead like the Queen of England, and she can only have the powers the other commissioners 
grant her, and virtually nothing else.  He thanked the commission. 
 
Michael Shyne commented that he had been selling commercial real estate for four decades.  He 
wanted to address the idea some people have that travel is vacation time and that when the mayor 
goes on a trip to promote Alamogordo it is vacation time.  In the forty years I have been selling 
commercial real estate, many times I would travel somewhere and visit someone face to face, and 
other times I tried to build that relationship without doing that.  Today it’s even easier for us to think that 
we can build these relationships without going somewhere because the internet is used sometimes I 
think, excessively in place of closer contact.  Today it is more important than ever before because of 
the nation’s economy.  Ten years ago we were all competing trying to get businesses and jobs to come 
to Alamogordo, but the competition wasn’t great.  Today it is tremendous; every single city is doing 
everything they can to generate jobs to bring money and revenue and programs to their cities.  That’s 
why this travel and building face to face relationships, I think and I hope you think, is more important 
than ever before.  I’m asking you to look at the Mayor’s requests to travel places, to spend city money 
as long as objectives are set out and reports are given afterwards.  I’m asking you to look at these 
expenditures as very valuable, because the money that will be spent is insignificant compared to the 



SEPTEMBER 9, 2014 CITY OF ALAMOGORDO REGULAR MEETING MINUTES PAGE 11 OF 28 

 
benefits the Mayor is going after.  Now, it is easy to think we’ve got the Chamber of Commerce and 
OCEDC and the Committee of 50, but what separates them from the Mayor is that the mayor is the top 
elected official from our city.  So, when the mayor meets people in other cities they have a completely 
different perspective on the relationship than they would if somebody is coming from OCEDC or the 
Chamber of Commerce; it is completely different.  It is taken much more seriously and the value and 
impact and benefit to our town is tremendous.  So, I’m simply asking that you look.  It’s so easy to think 
we’re just financing somebody’s vacation; not at all.  This is a lot of work and it is a huge benefit to our 
town.  He thanked the commission.    
 
Mayor Galea said she requested that this be added to the agenda for out of state travel for the 
Association of the United States Army (AUSA) trip.  The commission will see in the agenda packet 
there are a number of items to include the itinerary and a letter from the El Paso Chamber of 
Commerce signed by their president and their Chamber Board president.  It is a formal letter of request 
and she read the letter (in Agenda Book).  The mayor then showed a short slide show to explain what 
the purpose of the trip is and how it impacts our region, and not just our region, the City of Alamogordo 
(in Agenda Book).  
 
Commissioner Sikes said in our packet there is a letter dated September 5th, and as you stated it is 
from the El Paso Greater Chamber of Commerce and she was curious that if the Arms Committee did 
indeed feel Alamogordo is such an important part of this triad, why wasn’t Alamogordo invited.    Mayor 
Galea said Alamogordo was invited, and Commissioner Sikes said no, they were not.  They received 
no invitation to attend the Arms Meeting.  I called and asked and we received no letter of invitation 
because it has nothing to do with us.   
 
Mayor Galea said all commissioners are welcome to join me, are invited.  In fact, we have other 
members of the Arms Committee that are part of the Chamber through the Committee of 50, and that 
way they have invited the Chamber itself.   
 
Commissioner Sikes said the letter was also dated September 5th.  The meeting has been in planning 
for a number of months; the fact it was dated September 5th indicated to me that it was probably a 
request made by the mayor to write a letter to invite her.  That’s all I could surmise; I’m not saying 
whether that’s true of not, but that’s what it looked like to me.  It’s an addendum to our packet and 
wasn’t even an initial addition, so if people from OCEDC and the Chamber are telling me that we 
weren’t invited and that it has nothing to do with us, I don’t understand why we need to send you. 
 
Mayor Galea said she understood her questions.  She said I wish you could have called me and said 
that was your question before the meeting; I would have gladly answered it then.  The original item is 
an original agenda item and the letter is an addendum to the agenda packet.  I did say there was some 
discussion amongst the commission that there was a disagreement as to whether or not it was a 
meeting worth her time and worth the peoples’ money, and so I said a formal letter of request would be 
beneficial.   
 
Commissioner Hernandez moved to deny the travel.  Commissioner Sikes seconded the motion. 
Motion carried by a vote of 6-1-0. Mayor Galea voted nay. 
 
Commissioner Hernandez moved to approve that if she finds funds to go that she does not 
represent the Commission or the City of Alamogordo.   
 
The Mayor said she is mayor even when she goes to Wal-Mart, and Commissioner Hernandez said 
that’s fine, but we’re asking that you not represent us.  Mayor Galea said you are asking that I not 
represent you, that’s you motion.  Commissioner Hernandez said yes, m’am.  
 
Motion died for lack of a second.    
 
   



SEPTEMBER 9, 2014 CITY OF ALAMOGORDO REGULAR MEETING MINUTES PAGE 12 OF 28 

 
A-7. Consider, and act upon, asking staff to produce a Censure or No Confidence Ordinance 
 to supplement the current pay ordinance.  (Robert Rentschler, Mayor Pro-Tem) 
 
Mayor Pro-Tem Rentschler said he brought this item because there has been some discussion among 
the commission about the ability to censure members no matter who they are.  This isn’t necessarily 
directed at any individual on this commission.  What this does is give accountability to all of us.  This 
ordinance could be used against myself, against any commissioner, against the mayor, against any 
commissioner sitting here.  All it does is say we should have a way when a publicly elected official has 
really gone off the reservation, done things to the detriment of Alamogordo, we can say that’s enough, 
you’ve go to stop.  If it is approved at this point, this is to ask the city attorney to produce something like 
this.  It could go as far as eliminating pay, eliminating travel for whatever period or definition that the 
commission as a whole thinks it should be.  Again, this is not necessarily at this point in time directed 
against any particular member of this commission, but it could be once it is actually a law, if it becomes 
law; it’s only accountability.  All we’re looking for is a way to hold this commission accountable to 
ourselves.  It does not and cannot remove anybody from office, but what it says is we need to be 
responsible to each other, we need to be responsible to the citizens and what they are telling us.  It is 
an area that is probably lacking within the City Ordinances.  What you find is the pay is based upon for 
a commissioner and mayor the charter and the pay ordinance.  The Charter guarantees us, and cannot 
be taken away, $50 per regular meeting.  Every commissioner you see sitting here tonight receives $50 
for their presence.  That is Charter ordered and would not be removed.  The pay, on the other hand, is 
ordinance directed and we establish ordinance.  This is just a way for us to be able to say there’s a way 
for us to correct something that’s just gone way wrong that may at some point in time cost the City a lot 
of money.  We need to be able to put an end to it before we actually get to that point. 
 
Commissioner Hernandez said he also agreed with that.  The only thing he would do, and he didn’t 
know if it was a good thing or not, there are certain items we have where we have to go to a super 
majority which would be five votes in order to pass something, versus the normal four votes.  He thinks 
this would probably be one of those items because it is pretty easy to call four people, but to do five or 
even six is pretty hard.  I would say if we do this, it would be by a super majority vote which would be 
the five.  That way the public doesn’t think just four people got control; when you get five votes, that’s a 
lot. 
 
Mayor Pro-Tem Rentschler added that for him to be removed as Mayor Pro-Tem, what it takes is two 
seconds and a super majority of five.  He thought that was a very reasonable thing to consider that it 
should be along that line.   
 
Mayor Galea said she thought this was kind of what she asked for, but not exactly something she 
thought was positive.  If you recall back to the meeting minutes from March 2014, I had asked the 
commission to help me with something creative, something over and above what our Code of Conduct 
currently states, something other commissioners aren’t doing; to help me create an accountability 
program from within the commission group.  I think that the commission has already decided that we 
have something that Dr. George Straface has brought to our attention as an opportunity for us to adopt 
covenants and goals and policies that would help us remain accountable to ourselves.  I have a 
question as to whether or not a pay ordinance is something that the Attorney General would view as a 
positive ordinance, something that you can enforce in this term.  For example, when you passed the 
ordinance originally it was not effective in the current term it was passed.  For example, it was passed 
under Mayor Griggs’ time that the mayor would receive $750 a month for compensation for their travels, 
and I don’t know this could be enforced under the current term.   
 
City Attorney Thies stated the mayor was correct that you can’t reduce the level of compensation during 
someone’s term, but this does not necessarily follow that.  You couldn’t penalize the person by 
reduction of compensation even though that compensation would remain the same, and as far as limits, 
it’s $500 per month for commissioners and $750 for the mayor if you structure in such a way as a 



SEPTEMBER 9, 2014 CITY OF ALAMOGORDO REGULAR MEETING MINUTES PAGE 13 OF 28 

 
penalty or a sanction and not a permanent reduction, but a temporary reduction of the level of 
compensation received by the elected official. 
 
Commissioner Straface asked Mayor Pro-Tem Rentschler if he would be very clear on how he sees this 
ordinance impacting us and be as specific as you can. 
 
Mayor Pro-Tem Rentschler said what I see this ordinance doing, and again I don’t know that it is 
directable at this point in time, some may think it is but I don’t know that it is.  This ordinance would be 
something that would stay with future commissions, for this commission and future commissions from 
now on.  I believe, again, that there comes a point in time when there’s that possibility you could say 
this really is starting to hurt Alamogordo and has the possibility of costing us a lot; commissioner, mayor 
pro-tem, mayor you need to quit.  I think that is where we are at and as far as the specifics and whether 
it’s for a month, whether it’s for a year, whether it’s for six months, whether it’s complete loss of pay, 
whether it’s 50% or a quarter, I think all that would be what we would ask the attorney to come up with; 
some sort of gradient that would be like that and the commission could actually use. 
 
Commissioner Straface said maybe I’m just ignorant, but I would like you to look at that ordinance with 
me and tell me where it says that, I don’t see it. 
 
Mayor Galea said the ordinance is established as a level of pay of $500 for each commissioner and 
$750 for the mayor, so I choose to take it personally when you are going to remove travel from the only 
person that does the lion’s share of travel.   
 
Commissioner Straface said I don’t see it.  I understand the pay and all that, but where does it say in 
this ordinance, given whatever occurred to say as a commission, we are going to prohibit somebody’s 
expense request or reduce their salary.  Mayor Galea said it is not in there.  Commissioner Straface 
asked if that was the proposal and Mayor Pro-Tem Rentschler said that was the proposal. 
 
Mayor Pro-Tem Rentschler said that is the proposal, to add that to it.  Commissioner Straface asked to 
add that to it and ask staff to develop it?  Mayor Pro-Tem Rentschler said that is right. 
 
Mayor Galea said I think the staff has just said there isn’t statutory authority within the term, I do believe 
that would be financial coercion.   
 
Commissioner Straface said in your position, Madam Mayor, and I do understand that, what you are 
saying is it would have to happen on the next term.  Mayor Galea said yes. 
 
Commissioner Hernandez thinks this is something we can ask staff to research and look at and see 
what is available, if we can do it currently or have to wait until the next time.  With things that have 
happened and are happening, I think it is something that needs to be in place whether for us or for the 
next commission.   
 
Commissioner Hernandez moved to approve having staff look into the possibility of writing a 
supplement to the current pay ordinance or whether it’s for the next election. 
 
Commissioner Turnbull asked if this wasn’t what a recall election was for.  Couldn’t that be done to get 
rid of all this?  I’m just asking, otherwise this wouldn’t be for this term or any of us.  I’m just curious; that 
is kind of what a recall election would be for.  Mayor Galea said that is correct. 
 
Commissioner Hernandez agreed with her; there is a process of the recall election.  Currently it is 
almost impossible to recall even a commissioner, because of the amount of signatures needed, the 
amount of people who actually vote.  It would have to be somebody that went out and worked it.  The 
current situation that we have here, and I’ll bring it up since we’re being asked, is that we currently have 
on record eight hostile work environment claims filed against the Mayor of the City of Alamogordo.  If 
you guys want to see those, if you want to know about them come talk to me and I’ll show them to you.  



SEPTEMBER 9, 2014 CITY OF ALAMOGORDO REGULAR MEETING MINUTES PAGE 14 OF 28 

 
That is one of the reasons I support this is because a recall does not cover that.  The citizens don’t 
know about everything happening within our community.  We have to have some sort of recourse in 
order to take care of these.  If this is true, if this is happening, what do we do?  Do we let our mayor run 
amok, do we let our commissioners run amok and do what they want?  No, we don’t.  There has to be 
some sort of recourse to take care of those.  That is one of the reasons I support this. 
 
Mayor Galea asked him if he could state for the record the whole story, provide the whole overview of 
why there is a hostile work environment, or would you like me to do that.  Commissioner Hernandez 
said I don’t know why there is; I just know there are eight claims of hostile work environment.   
 
Mayor Galea said it is relating to my statement in the newspaper on August 4th.  There is a story….. 
Mayor Pro-Tem Rentschler interrupted to say this is more than…… Mayor Galea said no, you are going 
to let me finish what I’m saying because he alleged the mayor has created a hostile work environment, 
so I’m going to …… Commissioner Sikes interrupted to say to the mayor I would really hope that you 
don’t open up this can of worms.  Mayor Galea said ok.  Commissioner Sikes said I would really, 
sincerely hope that you don’t.  Mayor Pro-Tem Rentschler called the question.  Commissioner Sikes 
said you start talking, we’re going to start talking.  Mayor Galea said go ahead and start talking.  
Commissioner Sikes said ok.  Mayor Galea said you want to talk about how there’s micromanagement 
of city staff and our engineers have often left, and how we’ve lost other staff?  Commissioner Sikes said 
have at it.  Mayor Galea said it is ok for a blanket statement of hostile work environment to be made but 
no explanation.  Ok, I think you all can read the newspaper from August 4th.   
 
Mayor Galea said there is a motion on the floor.  Is there a second?   
   
Motion is to direct staff to look into a supplement current pay ordinance and whether it can be 
done currently or after the next Commission that sits in 2016, in order to allow the Commission 
some sort of leeway to hold commissioners or the mayor accountable for actions.  
Commissioner Sikes seconded the motion.  Motion passed by a vote of 5-2-0. Commissioner 
Turnbull and Mayor Galea voted nay. 
 
Mayor Galea said I am not to tell the whole truth. 
 
  
A-8. Consider, and act upon, a request for a policy regarding the White Sands Community 
 ditch that has been abandoned by the South Side Diversion projects.  (Robert Rentschler, 
 Mayor Pro-Tem) 
 
Mayor Pro-Tem Rentschler said I brought this after more than a year.  He showed a map on the 
overhead of the ditch in question.  He pointed out the ditch running down the middle of White Sands 
Community, which is a mobile home and RV park.  For 50 years, the City of Alamogordo has 
maintained this, since it was incorporated into the City.  About a year ago we found out that it may not 
belong to the City and the County may actually own this.  The problem is this ditch is no longer in use at 
all and has been abandoned by the southern diversion channel flows.  There are concrete channels on 
either side of it, and he pointed to the area on the map.  There is a low water crossing and we have 
been maintaining this ditch for decades.   He thought we should continue to maintain the ditch.  At this 
time, the weeds are hip high and mosquitoes are bad, and he felt it was a quality of life issue.  He has 
known the manager for many years and he would like to see an agreement for the city to continue 
maintaining the ditch or fill it in since it is no longer used because of the newer system of drainage 
ditches.  There is a lot of dirt dumped on another vacant property from work the city has done that could 
perhaps be used to fill in the ditch.  The present problem is negatively impacting the mobile park 
business. 
 
Pat Stewart is the manager of this park and she addressed the commission.  She stated she had been 
there 16 years and the city has mowed this ditch for those years.  She has a lot of snow birds, RVs that 
come and go to see our town and they like to take walks along the ditch.  Right now the ditch has got 



SEPTEMBER 9, 2014 CITY OF ALAMOGORDO REGULAR MEETING MINUTES PAGE 15 OF 28 

 
skunks, mosquitoes, snakes and more and is about 10 feet tall.  This year when she called to have it 
mowed the city said it was the county’s and the county said it was the city’s.  The elderly, the snow 
birds and the RVs walk their pets and take their strolls in the evenings and they are scared.  It is hurting 
our business and hurting the town.  She requested to have it mowed. 
 
Bill Dennis who lived in this mobile home community came forward.  He stated he has lived there for 
almost 31 years.  About 10 years ago he called the city and they sent Code Enforcement out who told 
him when the flood project was finished this ditch would be filled in and the land would be given to the 
owners.  He would like it to be filled in since it is a breeding ground for mosquitoes. 
 
City Manager Stahle said he wished he could say we are addressing these weeds tonight, but we are 
down some staff and are trying to keep up with the explosion of weeds throughout the city.  When we 
were dealing with the other part of this easement we found the city does not own this particular part of 
the easement, it is the county’s.  He had notified the county manager and they had received all 
paperwork on this.  He felt the goal of the city and county was to get rid of the ditch because it isn’t of 
any value and is clearly creating havoc for the residents.  When he discussed this with the county 
manager, she reiterated she is working with her staff and they want to meet out there to discuss the 
boundaries.  It is his understanding the county has accepted responsibility for the ditch and will send 
people out to take care of it as soon as they can.  He asked everyone to give the county a little bit of 
time and see if they take care of it, a week to 10 days, and if they don’t, we will.  He said he would need 
direction from the commission to do anything.  There is a legal process we must go through to abandon 
the easement, and as you might recall the abandonment of the other portions of this easement were 
problematic.  He explained that process was difficult since the owner was deceased and the 
surrounding property owners had to go through legal maneuvers to take ownership.  We don’t own it, 
we have communicated with the county, the county has agreed to get out there and deal with it as soon 
as they can, and they have been talking to us about it.  City Manager Stahle said he has had 
conversations with Mayor Pro-Tem Rentschler about finding dirt to fill it in, and we can work with 
whoever ends up with it, easement of no easement.  Our ultimate goal is to get rid of the ditch, it will 
simply take time. 
 
Mayor Pro-Tem Rentschler said he would like to see two things, to set a hard date of 10 days and if it is 
not done by then, the city will come and mow it.  City Manager Stahle asked him not to say that to the 
county.  Mayor Galea said we are not allowed to interfere with the county, but we are going to give 
them 10 days. 
 
Mayor Pro-Tem Rentschler said ok, 10 days or we do it because it is in the city and we need to 
preserve the quality of life for these people.  The second thing is as the Corps of Engineers finishes 
cementing the McKinley channel……and he noted the city attorney was shaking his head. 
 
City Attorney Thies said the next phase to be worked on is to reshape the curve (he pointed out on the 
map).  He did not believe it would be cemented since the Corps of Engineers opted not to concrete the 
entire McKinley Ditch in order to maximize the money they had.  Instead, they will only concrete the box 
culverts that run underneath the roads.  They will more than likely be lined with rock, similar to what 
was done on the east side of Florida.   
 
Mayor Pro-Tem Rentschler said there was a large pile of dirt at Fairgrounds and Pecan that could be 
moved over there.  The last time that dirt was available, the city staff told them no according to the 
superintendent of the company who has been doing all the ditch work up here.  He wanted to make 
sure this doesn’t happen again, and if there is any permission to be had we need to get that permission 
so we can fill this in and make it an area that could be of benefit to the city.   
 
Mayor Galea said to the city attorney she understood why our staff would say no to giving away a 
product belonging to the city so there wouldn’t be an Anti-Donation, and she understood the need for a 
contract which she hoped would be pursued. 



SEPTEMBER 9, 2014 CITY OF ALAMOGORDO REGULAR MEETING MINUTES PAGE 16 OF 28 

 
Mayor Pro-Tem Rentschler moved to approve that we mow it in 10 days if the County does not 
and  that we pursue ensuring we can fill that ditch with any excess dirt generated by the Corps 
of Engineers as they continue this other diversion channel.   
 
Mayor Galea asked what the budget impact would be of doing this work for the county.  Mayor Pro-Tem 
Rentschler said we have done it for years and years and it is in our budget. 
 
City Manager Stahle thought it had been described earlier that one individual with a serious mower 
could probably knock it out in a few hours.  It is an issue to make sure they don’t hit anything that would 
break the mowers, and he didn’t know how the county would do it. 
 
Mayor Galea was specifically talking about the dirt work that was part of the motion.   
 
City Manager Stahle said he didn’t know if we own the dirt and if it is already called for by someone 
else, but he got the message if we have extra dirt and can work out a deal with the county who owns 
the easement we can work out a way to fill it.  Mayor Pro-Tem Rentschler said they were looking to get 
rid of it. 
 
City Attorney Thies said normally as part of a construction project, the general contractor is responsible 
for hauling off the excess dirt, and they are looking for the cheapest way of disposing of it as possible.  
That’s why during this last phase of the McKinley project they hauled it over to one of these other 
vacant lots.  We can talk to the Corps of Engineers who will be awarding the contract for this phase 
prior to the end of the Federal fiscal year (end of this month), and this contractor could use that fill in 
this ditch.   
 
Commissioner Straface said it seems when we start saying we are going to move dirt, mow the ditch, 
let’s do it in 10 days, we are engaged in micro-management.  We need to ask the city manager to work 
with his staff to solve this and report back to us. 
 
Commissioner Hernandez seconded the motion.  
 
Mayor Pro-Tem Rentschler said this has been going on for about a year and a half, quite a while.  That 
is the reason it has finally come to this point to bring it to the commission.   
 
City Manager Stahle said one important part from his perspective is if we are going out to do something 
now that we know we are not the owners of the property/easement, it is important that you direct us.  
This motion would be important if we are going to mow it. 
 
Commissioner Straface said we engage so much in micro-management that it bothers him a lot.  He 
understood the history and the city manager’s need at this point, and he will support it. 
 
Motion passed by a vote of 7-0-0. 
 
   
A-9. Consider, and act upon, approval of Lodgers tax in sponsorship of the international 

event hosted by New Mexico Museum of Space History in Alamogordo for the DCA 
International Space Hall of Fame Induction. (Susie Galea, Mayor) 

 
Mayor Galea is asking that no action be taken and the item be removed. 
 
    
12. Appointments to Boards & Committees.  (Susie Galea, Mayor) 
 
Mayor Galea stated if there are no objections she would appoint Mary Hammon to the Mayor’s 
Committee on Aging and Ray Vincent to the Parks & Recreation Board.  There were no objections. 



SEPTEMBER 9, 2014 CITY OF ALAMOGORDO REGULAR MEETING MINUTES PAGE 17 OF 28 

 

PUBLIC COMMENT  
 
A)  Sharon Hodges commented on the following: 
Sharon Hodges reminded the Commission of the “Gosh, I Wish I Hadn’t Said That” presentation at a 
recent commission special meeting and she had got a lot out of it.  She hoped they had the opportunity 
as a collective body to talk about it.  She said the things the commissioners say and write, and the 
repercussions it has on them and their positions and on her as a resident of the city, have the potential 
for litigation.  Litigation means money out of coffers that we don’t need to be spending.  She felt the 
commission needed to be working together and mentoring each other, so before you say something 
you talk to each other first to decide if it is a good thing to say.  You followed that special meeting up 
with a work session on how you could collectively work together and have common goals.  I listened to 
you and watched your body language.  She said she had gone to the school board meetings much as 
she comes to these meetings and was embarrassed because that was not as we should be acting and 
representing the people you are voted to represent.  Dr. Straface came and in a very short time turned 
that board around with this same work plan.  She understood the barriers because she saw a broken 
commission, the trust is not there.  She wanted them to heed his words and work together, and 
remember that when you took that oath of office, you took it to represent us.  You need to put your egos 
aside and remember why you are there.  When you start holding each other hostage for your own 
agenda, shame on you.  When you go into the public and only use a portion of the information to rally 
the troops, to come in here on your behalf then shame on you, because they don’t have all the 
information.  You put your fellow commissioners in a very difficult place.  She was proud of them 
because they could have said some things that were very hurtful and shameful, but didn’t.  She 
addressed the mayor by saying she was the first in a long time that got the confidence to be sitting 
where she was, and it is up to you to start building fences.  You are the public face and no 
commissioner needs to be cleaning up after you or explaining your behavior.  She looked to the mayor 
to watch her words and begin mending fences.  To the commissioners she said she challenged them to 
work with fellow commissioner, Dr. Straface, and come up with a plan.  She had been on a long road 
trip with her husband and said they could live anywhere they want, but we came back to Alamogordo.  
She had come here as a child in 1958 from the Jersey Shores, and it took a long time to learn to love 
this place.  She loves Alamogordo and isn’t going anywhere, so she expects the best of the 
commission.  You need to duke it out somewhere else and when you come in here to face us, you need 
to use the dignity of your oath of office.  Next time you go to the media you need to watch your words 
because they hurt.  When you leave out information you do a disservice not only to this commission but 
to the City of Alamogordo and the very people you were elected to serve.   
 
B)  Judy Tucker commented on the following:  
Judy Tucker said she lived on Sunset Ave. in Alamogordo and was the widow of an Air Force retiree.  
She was involved as a volunteer in many areas of town and was a pink lady at the hospital.  When she 
read Susie’s article today, she was happy that somebody was going to reach out and try to get this 
community to grow.  When they were stationed at HAFB in the 1970’s, the big excitement was when 
McDonald’s opened.  We came back after her husband retired and thought this town would have 
grown, but were distressed to note it had shrunk.  Having been an Air Force wife for 23 years, she 
knew the impact a base could have on a town.  She felt it was extraordinarily important, and she hoped 
she would continue trying to do what she has for the town and write the way she has so other people 
understand what is happening.  She felt the rest of the commission should be ashamed of themselves 
for keeping her from doing that. 
 
C)  Robert Clock commented on the following: 
Robert Clock, 602 S. Florida, said he watched tonight’s meeting.  He thought he was at Mayor Galea’s 
first meeting and told his wife, ‘Oh my God’.  He had served ten years on the Planning and Zoning 
Committee in Westminster, CO, and lived there for 40 years.  He was involved in politics all of those 
years.  What he saw in the mayor we elected by a considerable margin, to him she is maybe a notch 
above.  He found it disheartening to see another commissioner act like a pit bull to our mayor, and he 
didn’t like that and didn’t think the voters in the city did either.  He said he had only been here five 



SEPTEMBER 9, 2014 CITY OF ALAMOGORDO REGULAR MEETING MINUTES PAGE 18 OF 28 

 
years, but he saw a town he liked and was a nice place to live.  Every egg we have is in HAFB, and if 
someone doesn’t reach out and try to bring something into this town we will die; you grow or you die.  
He was born and raised in a little town in Minnesota called Austin, MN, the home of Hormel and Spam.  
At one time Hormel was a prime place to work; they had a 40 hour week before it was thought about 
anywhere else; you had to give a 52 week notice to lay someone off.  Today, Hormel is very poor and 
has a lot of plants all over.  Back then, there was only one plant and it was in Austin.  What he was 
getting at is that Austin, MN went from being the pride of southern Minnesota to losing out to other 
towns which are much larger.  In 1954 when he graduated from high school in Austin and was looking 
for a job, he went to Hormel who put him on the list with 162 ahead of him and they hadn’t hired anyone 
in nine years.  He decided to go into the military instead.  He wondered how many young people 
graduating from Alamogordo High will live here when they are our age; not many because Burger King 
and Wal-Mart just don’t cut it.  
 
D)  Eliza Fernandez commented on the following: 
Eliza Fernandez said she was a citizen of Alamogordo and had been in New Mexico about 14 years 
and in Alamogordo about eight years.  When she moved here her income dropped about $22,000; 
there was nothing here.  She had a job where she had more responsibilities of managing three different 
motels, their receivables and payrolls, and when she got here there was nothing for her.  Fortunately, 
she did have family here and had been a military spouse for 14 years; that’s what brought her here.  As 
a military wife she was a family readiness provider and when other spouses deployed she was their 
point of contact.  She went to state meetings from 2002 up until this past year and she had the 
opportunity to go to a national conference got more resources, information and guidance to share with 
those military members.  She is now also in law enforcement and has been for five years; prior to that 
she worked at HAFB as a volunteer victim advocate.  So, she has dealt with people in all walks of life 
and culture backgrounds, and she has found the younger generation here and that have been brought 
to HAFB think there is nothing for them here.  Alamogordo is amazing if you have a family, but when 
she moved here in 2000 there wasn’t a Chili’s, Applebee’s, Buffalo’s or Carl’s Junior.  We have gotten 
more businesses in the past seven to eight years, and networking is essential.  In law enforcement, 
training locally is great, training throughout the state is great; extending those points of contact and 
networking is extremely important.  She has been with the PD for about five years and has been a 
detective for over a year, and there are people she reaches out to from other states who have come 
here to work with the City and our detectives free of charge.  She can contact one of them now and 
have a response in a matter of minutes who is a national expert and an essential tool for us.  Without 
that travel and point of contact she wouldn’t have that resource.  She is going through training this week 
and has met people from other agencies that she will continue to remain in contact with.  So you have 
more than five years of experience, combined.  Her concern after hearing the things said was that she 
does her best to be professional at every turn and hold herself and her actions accountable.  If 
something is wrong even though it might get her in trouble, she will speak to the issue; she hoped that 
as elected officials representing the City they would bring attention to any wrongs since the public might 
not know about them.  There are things she does on a daily basis that people don’t want to know about, 
but she still has the responsibility and accountability to the citizens of Alamogordo.  She hoped as they 
review, a complaint might be made and a valid complaint is a little different.  We should dig more and 
be more open.  There have been things she has seen and research she has done through Public 
Records Requests that make her wonder why things have not come out more in the past, why things 
have not been addressed.  She said if a valid complaint was made against her and her bosses decided 
she could not travel or go to training, it would be hurting the City of Alamogordo because they would not 
have a properly trained individual.  That really needs to be addressed and keep in mind the state of 
New Mexico is huge and Alamogordo has been on the map and in the media for positive things.  It is a 
beautiful city and a wonderful place to live, but there are some skeletons that have been brought out to 
light.  There needs to be transparency if there is nothing to hide.  Everyone won’t be happy with the 
decisions you make, but that’s why you were elected to represent us and make those hard decisions. 
 
E)  Pat Galea commented on the following: 
Pat Galea said she usually sits quietly to observe.  She came to Alamogordo about three weeks before 
Susie was elected as a commissioner and lived in her home when members of this commission started 



SEPTEMBER 9, 2014 CITY OF ALAMOGORDO REGULAR MEETING MINUTES PAGE 19 OF 28 

 
calling to say they had two people on the commission who both think it is their turn to be mayor and we 
don’t want contention, so we would like for you to accept the position of mayor.  She fully recognized 
Susie was a young, blonde woman who was a military wife and who hadn’t been in the community very 
long, and someone may have thought they would have someone they could pull puppet strings on.  
She was sure they were very disappointed because you have a young, blonde woman who is a military 
wife who is very on-the-ball, willing to reach out and accept the challenge.  She has heard people say 
she hadn’t lived here long before becoming mayor, but she did not seek to become mayor.  She said I 
have also witnessed other people on this commission really step into it up to their hips.  I was at the 
Snake Plant when the mayor, the governor and other elected officials were present and the mayor gave 
a wonderful history of the Snake Plant, information I did not know, but failed to recognize after telling us 
the Air Force had paid for and installed a pipeline for 30 miles, the mayor didn’t acknowledge the 
presence of the reigning HAFB official, didn’t put a shovel in his hand and allow him to participate.  That 
was a pretty big gap.  Yes, there were some comments made in the newspaper that gets wide 
circulation.  I’m sure every one of you can look in your background and find things you wish you had not 
said.  I can tell you only that the highest tribute my son has paid to me was to marry the woman who is 
very much like me.  I retired from the military as a civilian, a GS12 workforce panelist.  I am one of 
those people who when you close the door, I am looking for an open window.  I am one of those people 
that has sometimes opened my mouth and put my foot in it up to my knees.  My husband will tell you 
that sometimes I do not know when to shut up.  I know that when Jay selected Susie as a wife he didn’t 
choose her because she was going to become a public official, he chose her because she makes a 
wonderful wife and a good mother.  Most of the time when I am with Susie or with Jay, we’re not talking 
about the City or about things that happened among the commission. We are talking about my 
granddaughters and who needs a ride to soccer and robotics at the same time and how I can help and 
when do you need help; can I come over and help clean house because Susie’s out-of-town for the 
week.  We don’t discuss what goes on with you guys very often.  She hoped that as an old lady you will 
listen to me, and when you go into your Executive Session that you guys will consider a group hug, will 
consider the fact you all started out liking each other and there is no reason you shouldn’t continue to 
like each other.  That is just the workings in my mind, and I wouldn’t have stood up but I had a nervous 
feeling that said speak now.  I appreciate you listening.   
 

CITY MANAGER’S REPORT 
 
1) City Manager Stahle said our construction projects are well under way and we should be wrapping 
them up in the next couple of months.  He thanked everyone for paying attention to all the cones and 
the relocated road you try to find in the morning after they have changed it five times the week before.  
It is difficult and there are a lot of roads that need work, but he was proud the commission had the 
foresight to borrow some money on some GRT to get some of the bigger projects completed.  He 
thanked the community for tolerating this difficult time with all the construction going on. 
2) He had some good news from the FAA.  We have been worried about who will pay for a gas line 
relocation associated with the extension of the runway at the airport.  We learned from the FAA this 
morning that a grant should be able to cover that, so instead of paying about $40,000 on our own we 
will have the Feds pay 90%, the State pay 5% and we pay only 5%.  It illustrates we are cooperating 
and continuing to cooperate with the other agencies. 
 

REMARKS AND INQUIRIES BY THE CITY COMMISSION  
 
A)  Mayor Galea commented on the following: 
1) Mayor Galea remarked that as alluded to earlier, there was a majority of Customer Service staff who 
asked I make a public apology.  Working with our city manager, he asked I make it short and sweet, but 
I have learned now that would not be enough for our city commission so I will deliver my full address to 
the City Staff. 
“I would like to take this opportunity to sincerely thank you for your heartfelt letter from the majority of 
your staff.  First and foremost, I want to state it is not my intention to create what you feel is a hostile 
work environment for anyone working in the best interests for our City.  I am passionate about the 



SEPTEMBER 9, 2014 CITY OF ALAMOGORDO REGULAR MEETING MINUTES PAGE 20 OF 28 

 
people who elected me to be Mayor and I really want to do what is in their best interests, and the best 
interests of the honest and hard-working employees of the City.  That would include any City employee 
that comes to work every day and gives 100% to their duties.  With regard to the email you reference in 
your letter, I write to Mark Citizen, ‘I am of the minority group on the commission that believes that this 
is a criminal act committed not only by Armando, but by other employees he worked with.’  This 
statement was made based on the information provided to me by the forensic accounting report dated 
July 2, 2014, conducted by the Sweetser Forensic Accounting.  On page 2 it states the following: 
‘Although the first allegation was not substantiated, it is apparent that the employees in the Utility Billing 
Customer Service Department are not performing their duties in compliance with City ordinance.  It 
should be noted that non-compliance is not limited to the Customer Service Manager.’  The next 
paragraph is a recommendation and in there it states that, ‘During an interview, one City employee was 
asked if they had a copy of the City’s ordinance.  They stated that they did keep a copy by their desk.  If 
that is correct, giving the employees a copy of the ordinance appears not to be sufficient in order to 
insure compliance.’  I am unaware if a copy of this report was ever provided to you, meaning the City 
employees.  If not, you might request one to help clarify the situation.  This was never meant to be a 
personal attack on any one of you or to any way impede your ability to obtain future employment, but 
simply a statement to a concerned citizen based on a thorough investigation provided to me.  The 
reason I believe it is criminal is because I believe that our ordinance should be treated as law and by 
not treating all of our citizens fairly, I truly believe that we violated the law.  Please see Section 1-01-
020 Rules of Construction – Definitions from City Ordinance.  Here are a few examples that have 
nothing to do with the Water Department to see if I can help you understand my perspective.  If our 
citizens do not follow ordinance by allowing their property to become overgrown by weeds, we give 
them a ticket.  If they do not comply then, we the City place a lien on their property which is enforceable 
by law.  Please see 26-03-030 also 05 – Weeds Unlawful Growth and Removal by the City.  The 
commission directed in the last year that a scheduled inspection route be established so that all public 
and private properties would be treated equally.  If a business owner comes to the city limits and begins 
to do business without obtaining a business license, they have violated City Ordinance, and that is 
enforceable by law.  You can see that in 17-01-100 – Offences, Nuisances, Procedures of Non-
exclusion.  Recently, Commissioner Rentschler worked to enact a Pigeon Ordinance, a nuisance 
ordinance, and the commission voted to pass the measure.  Now anyone found deliberately feeding 
pigeons on public or private property can be found guilty of a petty misdemeanor or even a violation.  
You can see that at 7-05-030 and 050.  Pet owners whose pets become loose and Animal Control 
catches them, lose the right to choose to spay or neuter those animals.  That is a violation of ordinance 
by having their animals out of their control and therefore enforceable by law – 7-01-050 also 065.  
Again, it was never my intent to personally attack any of you in the Customer Service Department or 
any other staff, however, it is my role as the mayor to work with the commission, to direct only the city 
manager in order to protect the citizens by enforcing the City’s Code of Ordinances.  I stand by all the 
City Manager’s choices in harmony with our ordinances and I do not interfere with personnel matters 
where the public’s trust is not concerned.  I do not necessarily believe that all of you knew of Mr. 
Ortega’s misdeeds, and even if you did know it is understandable if you might have felt intimidated by 
anyone having more authority preventing any prior reporting of it.  However, it is your duty as a City 
employee to deal lawfully and responsibly with tax payer dollars, and if you see them being handled 
unlawfully, it is certainly up to you to follow the rules and report the misdeeds to those in your chain of 
command.  I feel confident that under the watchful eye of LeeAnn Nichols, your department will be 
heeded in a positive direction and no further digressions will occur, but that all citizens will fairly be held 
accountable for their water usage.  I have been made to realize that the word ‘stealing’ may not have 
been the appropriate word to use as quoted in the August 4th news article, and that will be my last 
statement on the matter.”   
 
This was dated August 24th and I did not send it on at that time because the city manager preferred a 
short and sweet one, but that was not satisfactory to the commission.  
 
B)  Mayor Pro-Tem Rentschler commented on the following: 
1) Mayor Pro-Tem Rentschler asked Public Works Director Cesar about the drain at North Scenic and 
Florida.  Last time it rained we had a big mud puddle there again.  Are we going to get that? 



SEPTEMBER 9, 2014 CITY OF ALAMOGORDO REGULAR MEETING MINUTES PAGE 21 OF 28 

 
 
City Manager Stahle asked him the location again, and Mayor Pro-Tem Rentschler told him.  He said 
there are other things, too.  If you look at where the flood came across there, we had back-hoes and 
loaders that left these big, deep ruts and mud on the sidewalks, and there is still some clean-up left to 
be done.  Since it has been a month, he was wondering when it would be fixed. 
 
Public Works Director Cesar responded saying we do have that and the list of things we still need to 
address from the flooding.  There have been work orders come in since that time on other issues 
including weeds.  We hoped to have that addressed last week and we were not able to complete it.  We 
are trying to have it done by the end of this week.  Mayor Pro-Tem Rentschler thanked him. 
 
EXECUTIVE SESSION   
 

 Sale, Acquisition, or Disposal of Real Property (Housing Authority Properties) 
A-10. Limited Personnel Matters (City Commission) 
 
Mayor Galea remarked to the commission that she had addressed this with our attorney, Randy Van 
Vleck, through the NM Municipal League regarding the Limited Personnel Matters for City Commission, 
and his opinion was that the commission is not considered to be personnel for purposes of the Open 
Meetings Act.  A closed session to talk about a disruptive commissioner, for example, would be 
improper.  There is, however, an exception for the Purchase of Real Property, for example.  The mayor 
said she would not be comfortable going in to Executive Session regarding a Limited Personnel Matters 
(City Commission).   
 
Commissioner Hernandez said we will then do that in public, right now.  Mayor Galea said ok. 
 
Commissioner Hernandez noted as stated earlier we have eight hostile work environment claims 
against the mayor.  He said an apology does not satisfy that as our ordinances in our personnel 
manual.  If someone has a hostile work environment against another employee or the city manager or 
anyone else, it must be handled through the proper procedures.  He said I have looked to find out if this 
has ever been done; I have only found one.  It was in Clovis where a commissioner and the county 
manager had an issue and they hired an outside person to come in and investigate it and give their 
opinions of what was done and what’s to be done.  So that is what I am asking the commission to do, 
because we do have to address these eight complaints.  That is why I have asked for that.  I actually 
have the person I have looked at who did the one in Clovis.  The one in Clovis is quite a bit different 
and I’ll give you the breakdown of that one.  (All documents passed out by Commissioner Hernandez 
are in the agenda report)  What I am asking the commission is that we direct Staff to look into bringing 
this person on board, or if not available, somebody like them to investigate this and come up with an 
opinion of what is to be done.  I also have for you guys the actual complaints.  I didn’t make copies of 
the actual, the one from Water Billing, the seven, and will get to you guys if you don’t have them.  I 
believe as a commission we should address these as they were made.  Again, I don’t believe an 
apology, because that’s not allowed by our handbook.  It has to be investigated and brought forward 
and something come out of it.  So, I’m asking the commission that we handle this in this sense. 
 
Commissioner Sikes said she had a brief comment.  Just from listening to the Public Comment this 
evening, I just want to say that I think that the commissioners are judged unfairly, particularly 
Commissioner Hernandez.  When he brings this type of topic forward he initially wanted to bring it 
forward in an Executive Session because he doesn’t want to embarrass the commission or the mayor.  
I find it very awkward to be going over this type of thing and a lot of blame will be thrown Commissioner 
Hernandez’s way, and I don’t think that is fair, because a lot of the topics we are covering are things 
that each commissioner on this commission has made a statement about.  I don’t know how to say it 
any less awkwardly, but I just want you to know that I would have preferred to step in the back and talk 
about this rather than embarrass the commission or the mayor.  There have been some things 
happening that I personally don’t appreciate, and I don’t like for Commissioner Hernandez to take all 



SEPTEMBER 9, 2014 CITY OF ALAMOGORDO REGULAR MEETING MINUTES PAGE 22 OF 28 

 
the brunt.  For example, we had an Oktoberfest last year; a lot of things came out after that Oktoberfest 
that put us in a very, very awkward position.  The mayor took it upon herself on social media to bring up 
the fact that the reason we’re not doing Oktoberfest on city property this year is because the 
commission, and she kept referring to ‘the commission, the commission, the commission’, as if she is 
above the commission.  The commission voted not to absolve the German Army of a $4,600 invoice.  
That wasn’t the only reason we aren’t doing Oktoberfest on city property this year.  We had a number of 
citations and I think all that got resolved; we had a lot of property complaints, the corners of Florida and 
Fairgrounds were left with vomit, urine, puke, glass, you name it that the people who owned the 
property had to clean up and they didn’t truly appreciate that.  The reason that we didn’t have any 
police incidents is because Chief Duncan took it upon himself to make sure we didn’t have police 
incidents by making sure there were extra law enforcement people available, which ended up costing 
us a little bit more than we anticipated originally.  As a consequence, the invoice to the Germans was 
$4,600 higher than they anticipated; they decided not to pay it and we decided not to absolve it, period.  
And some things that didn’t come out that you may not be aware of is the fact that when they were 
unloading equipment in the parking lot, maybe the parking lot was a little bit compromised because 
leading up to Oktoberfest we had some rain and the asphalt was a little bit soft.  They pulled an 18 
wheeler in and it sunk in the asphalt and rather than leaving it there, they moved it two or three times.  I 
don’t know if anyone’s noticed when you go to Grigg’s Field, but that parking lot hasn’t been repaved.  It 
needed to be fixed at the tune of about $40,000.  The German Army wouldn’t pay it and we don’t have 
the money to fix it.  There are a lot of reasons we did not do Oktoberfest on city property, but for the 
mayor to throw the commission under the bus saying we were the ones that decided we weren’t doing 
it.  It never even came before us this year.  I think it was understood by the German Army that we 
would probably not want to do it.  We didn’t make any money on it, we got in trouble and we had an 
extraordinary amount of embarrassment when it was all said and done.  That happened on social 
media, great, we have to deal with that and people questioned me up one side and down the other.  
And then, understand that over the course of the last few months, we have asked to work together as a 
team.  I want you to know that we all like each other.  When people make the accusation that we don’t 
like each other, that is not true; I have a lot of respect for my colleagues.  When we try to work together, 
and time and time again we find we are all working together with one exception, and we’ve made 
minimal requests that before anything be printed in the paper or thrown out there on social media, that 
we at least give our approval, or consent or at least we should know about it.  It falls on deaf ears and it 
gets to us after a while.  I think the Op-Ed piece in today’s paper could have been handled a little 
differently.  I think the request that was made in the thousands of words could have been handled a 
little bit differently.  That being said, I just want everybody to know, don’t focus attention on the 
individuals who speak up and call us things like bull dogs.  We are just trying to be transparent, also, 
and as I said, I would have preferred in an Executive Session.   
 
Commissioner Hernandez said the way he planned on handling this was through Executive Session, 
bringing it to the commission, discussing this as we are discussing right here and right now.  This was 
just amongst the commission, no City Staff, ask the City Staff to come in once it was discussed and 
give them direction the commission chose.  At this time, I would ask that the commission support me 
one of two ways; either answer the questions of the work place harassment that we are not going to do 
anything, or we ask Staff to engage in hiring an outside investigator to come in and investigate it, find 
the findings and then go from there.  Those are the only two things I see, those are the only two options 
that I see.  We either tell Staff we don’t care or we do something, one way or the other.  Or, unless 
there is a different way to address that, I don’t know.  I’m sorry our policy handbook, an apology does 
not cover what I believe has happened.   
 
Mayor Galea said I’m sorry you misunderstood me.  I wasn’t apologizing to make any hostile work 
environment claims go away.  Mr. Hernandez, I was responding to a letter that you’ve already handed 
out to the commissioners that was dated August 18th where Staff asked for a public apology.   
 
Commissioner Hernandez said that’s fine, but they’ve also filed a work place harassment and we need 
to address all eight of them because there are seven signatures on one and then there is a separate 
one.  I believe those need to be addressed in one form or another, whether they are addressed by us 



SEPTEMBER 9, 2014 CITY OF ALAMOGORDO REGULAR MEETING MINUTES PAGE 23 OF 28 

 
writing them a letter and saying we discussed it in a public meeting and that’s all we are going to do, or 
if you guys have a different idea.  I sat here and I waited, I waited for Staff to bring us something, I 
waited for the attorney to bring us something, and I waited for each of us to say something and nothing 
was ever done.  It was like ok, maybe it will just go away; it’s not going away so we need to address it.  
However the commission feels right to address it, that’s up to you guys.  I have brought this to you and I 
recommend this, some type of form to address this so we can move on. 
 
Mayor Galea said you are welcome to go to your Executive Session and discuss it.  I’m happy to 
discuss it in the open.  Commissioner Hernandez said we’ve already discussed it, so what I’m asking 
the commission now is to support me in directing Staff in a motion form to hire the Holcomb Law Firm to 
come in and do an investigation on these items. 
 
Mayor Galea said how about the other items, there have been many hostile work environments that 
have been verbal and not written down.  We could point out the fact there are police officers that feel 
micromanaged by yourself, and we did lose a city engineer because of our Mayor Pro-Tem Rentschler, 
are we going to talk about all these? 
 
Commissioner Hernandez said they are not written down.  If they are written down, let’s do it.  Mayor 
Galea said it sounds like a free-for-all.  Ok. 
  
Commissioner Turnbull said I received, and I don’t have it with me, but I know we all received it.  It is 
opposite of this, the hostile work environment.  It’s actually people that are….. Commissioner Sikes 
interrupted to say it wasn’t signed.  Commissioner Turnbull said it wasn’t signed and we all know why it 
wasn’t signed, but this one that was signed does say that they would like to have a public apology from 
the mayor and you gave them that.  So, as far as this one is concerned, that seems answered to me.  I 
take issue with, I don’t agree with you going to the paper and we’ve discussed that, and I know you’ve 
just recently went again, and I am against that.  But I am also against you receiving the brunt of 
something you didn’t do but you commented on.  We discussed that.  We don’t want you to discuss that 
any further with the paper.  You didn’t do the act; you had an opinion about it and you’re getting more 
flack for that opinion than what, I mean, am I going to get sued fro saying this?  I’m just saying that she 
didn’t do the act and she’s getting more heat for it, ok.  I don’t want it to go to the paper anymore.  But 
on that same thing I’m in agreement that I don’t want you going to the paper anymore, and I see that 
you went to the paper again, I do take issue with that.   
 
Commissioner Baldwin asked Commissioner Turnbull why she didn’t want her going to the paper 
anymore.  Commissioner Turnbull said I don’t want her going to the paper anymore because like she 
said, she’s the mayor at Wal-Mart, she’s the mayor all the time.  So, I would like you to come to us and 
say ‘Hey, what do you think about this?’ and get a consensus and have most of us agree at least or I 
say all of us agree before it goes to the paper.   
 
Commissioner Baldwin asked what led her, what led us to that conclusion that we’re having this 
discussion right now; repeated offenses.  So, you are defending the mayor in a sense that you’re 
saying she’s taking all the flack for just a comment.  Commissioner Turnbull said just for the most 
recent one.  Commissioner Baldwin said the fall-out from the comment, the Commissioner has just 
handed out all the fall-out from those comments.   
 
Commissioner Turnbull said I wish I had the other one, I didn’t bring it with me but I know you guys got 
it.  If somebody has it, I would read that.  It does say there are a lot of people afraid to say something 
because they’re probably afraid to get sued if they don’t agree with what these people say, then they 
are looked down on.  There are two sides and we are really only hearing from the side of the ones that 
are here; I’m just trying to see both sides. 
 
Commissioner Baldwin asked where did that division come from?  Comments made by the mayor.  
Commissioner Turnbull said yes, comments made by the mayor but opinions on what people did, and I 
have spoken to a lot of people.  I don’t want to go down this road, but there are a lot of people in this 



SEPTEMBER 9, 2014 CITY OF ALAMOGORDO REGULAR MEETING MINUTES PAGE 24 OF 28 

 
town that are upset that things happened the way they happened.  Commissioner Baldwin said sure.  
Commissioner Turnbull said we aren’t supposed to comment on that because it’s personnel, then I 
don’t think we should be commenting on this for the same reason, it’s personnel. We were told to butt 
out, we were told to not have an opinion about what happened.  Well then, how can we have an opinion 
about this?  Commissioner Baldwin said because it is us.  It’s a big difference.  
 
Commissioner Hernandez asked Police Chief Duncan to come up.  He asked him when was the last 
time you and I had a discussion about your department.  Police Chief Duncan said it has been a while, 
sir.  I haven’t talked to you in probably, at least maybe five months.  When I first got here, we were 
talking a whole lot.  Commissioner Hernandez told him thank you, that’s what I needed to know. 
 
Commissioner Hernandez asked City Manager Stahle when was the last time you and I had a 
discussion about DPS?  City Manager Stahle said I’ve briefed commissioners on the PCAP and 
that’s…. Commissioner Hernandez interrupted and asked when was the last time I came to you about 
DPS?  City Manager Stahle said I have no idea; I wouldn’t venture to guess, it has been a while.   
 
Commissioner Hernandez said I got word it was bothersome and if I have an issue I don’t have a 
problem going to Bobby.  I don’t have a problem going to one of the officers.  If I have something that 
comes up I will go to them and let them know, or the City Manager, depending on where my mind is 
thinking I need to take it.  But I do not interfere with any of the departments, none of them.  A couple of 
months ago I had a meeting with Matt McNeile with the Soccer League.  It was directed through Jim 
Stahle first because he is our point of contact.  Jim Stahle sent it down the road and Matt and I met and 
occasionally I’ll ask Matt where we are at with it, how we are doing with it.  I do that all the time.   
 
Commissioner Straface said I think we need to step back a moment.  I think some cooler heads need to 
be dealing with this.  Mr. Hernandez, I understand why you give us two choices.  Commissioner 
Hernandez said absolutely, I said that.  Commissioner Straface continued saying that I think all of us 
have concerns that we’re not operating as a team, that when a decision is made by the commission we 
all support it, even if we personally don’t agree.  It’s not appropriate to go out and say that was the 
commission, but not me.  We have to own it and that goes with the territory of working as a board.  Now 
we make our best arguments, we make our best points but if we don’t influence each other we go with 
the majority of the board, and we support that publicly.  So, we don’t write editorials, we don’t write Op-
Eds, we don’t interview people, we don’t give our comments.  We also have to be really cognizant, 
each of us, that as representatives of the commission, our words can cause litigation, which are big 
bucks, big dollars, hundreds of thousands of dollars for a casual remark.  And that is something that is 
our responsibility.  So I think, Mr. Hernandez, it would not be appropriate to ask for an investigation and 
I’ll tell you why.  I believe all you’ll do is re-open wounds, pour salt on wounds and it won’t help us reach 
where we want to be.  I do think as a board, and tonight would be appropriate, that we take an action 
that says for all of us, it is not appropriate for us to act outside the team decisions.  And that if you want 
to call it is a censure, you can say it, I would not put that in the label, but I would make it very clear of 
the expectations of a board.  As a member of the board, I think that’s what needs to happen.  From this 
point forward we move forward with it; we don’t back up.  All that’s going to do is serve to continue to 
cause division and what we need to do is come together. 
 
Commissioner Baldwin thanked Commissioner Straface for his remarks and said I would be willing to 
make that remark right here in front of everybody, I’ve no problem with that.  But, I’ve made that remark 
to this commission at least five times prior to the last two and a half years and I think that’s where we 
are at.  I’ve made the same comment, that same promise to my fellow commissioners, mayors and city 
managers that I’d stay out of their business, that I’d listen and vote; those are my two primary jobs as a 
city commissioner and that’s basically it.  I think that’s pretty much what I do, but I don’t see the follow-
through on that commitment.  Maybe doing it here in an open meeting is the answer.  We’ve done it 
mostly in Executive Session and we’ve done it recently in some of our meetings at the Golf Course.  
We had at the Golf Course just recently the kum-bi-ya meetings, basically keep your mouth shut, but it 
didn’t work.  So, here we are. 
 



SEPTEMBER 9, 2014 CITY OF ALAMOGORDO REGULAR MEETING MINUTES PAGE 25 OF 28 

 
Mayor Pro-Tem Rentschler said this commission has certainly got some problems, there’s no doubt 
about it, but what I’ll tell all of you is this, that we all work together.  Whether you believe it or not we do 
good for the City of Alamogordo.  There’s a lot going on in the city.  The union can sit there and shake 
their head all they want to, that’s fine.  They had that opportunity, but we do a lot of good for the City of 
Alamogordo as a commission.  We don’t always agree, we will never always agree.  The cardinal rule 
has always been once the commission makes a decision you don’t publicly beat your fellow 
commissioners for the decision that was made.  We have to stand unified to the public when it comes to 
this stuff, even a 4-3 vote.  Like it or not, and I’ve been on the wrong side of that a lot more than once, 
but at the same time if the commission makes that position, you back up and get away from it.  That’s 
what you have to do, you have to stay unified.  I guess that’s what I’d like to see us continue to do here.  
I guess I’m more concerned about what we’re going to see as far as litigation is going to be concerned. 
We are here today, because right now there’s a real possibility, every commissioner up here believes 
that we may be on, the citizens, you guys, that future pay raises may be on tap for what could be 
hundreds of thousands of dollars.  Does anybody like to see tax payer money given away like that?  
No, but it’s brought us to this point.  I promise you we would not be here except for that, the potential to 
lose tax payers money for no good reason.  We’ve got to be smarter as public officials and not say 
things to members of the media and in other public forums that will get us sued, particularly when there 
may not be any basis for it and even if there is basis for it.  All we’ve got to do is insure that the tax 
payer money is spent wisely and whether you like it or not, it’s not being spent wisely; that’s the 
opposite.  Again, there’s a reason we’ve come to this, and I can appreciate each and every one of you 
that stood up and talked to us about what you think about us.  The bottom line, the truth is the vast 
majority of us here, the super majority certainly understand and work together to insure that good things 
happen to Alamogordo.  What I will say, too, about Mayor Galea is she is an excellent face of the 
community, people remember her, people understand her.  She is endearing and people recognize her 
from across the room, but that’s what she is – the face of the community.  Other than that, she has the 
same power as any other commissioner here, period.  The City Charter insured that’s what is going to 
happen.  If we wanted a strong mayor when we put this all together, the commission at the time and at 
this point we’re talking two to three commissions ago, decided the best thing to do was to have a weak 
mayor and have a mayor equal in power to the rest of the commissioners.  That is why we have the 
division of powers we have.  If the City wants a strong mayor, change the Charter.  We can certainly 
have an Albuquerque mayor here if we want one.  I was never in favor of it either way, and mostly 
because of what we have had for a long, long time – accountability.  You had a mayor that was 
accountable to the rest of the commission and therefore accountable to the rest of the city, to all the 
residents of the city.  I thought it worked well.  We’ve gotten away from that and we’ve had some 
problems, there’s no doubt about it.  I can assure you one thing about all this though, this commission 
will overcome this.  It may cost us a lot of money, but we will overcome this.  We’ll continue to work 
together and continue to do the best we can for the city; we’ll continue to make sure city employees are 
treated fairly; we’ll continue to see that the citizens are treated fairly.  That’s really the bottom line for all 
of this; we’re here, I’m not here to whatever you think I’m here for.  All I can tell you is that I’m here for 
one reason, and that is I’ve been in Alamogordo for 56 years.  I was raised here and I like it here, and 
I’m here for one reason – to do the best I can for my city.  If you think I’m here for whatever reason for 
the giant salary, well, no.  The truth is if you run for one of these offices up here, if you run for one of 
these, just to run is going to hurt you.  Try to be in business and actually sit here; it’s painful and has 
cost me a lot.  One of the things I’m really grateful for, right here and right now, is that I didn’t get 
elected mayor.  I ran because other people wanted me to, and it would have cost me a lot more if I’d 
gotten elected.  I’m just as glad I didn’t and can do without it.  It’s a tough job, no doubt about it.  It 
takes a lot of perseverance, a lot of political savvy and understanding to be able to do that job.  Right 
now, what I will promise to Alamogordo is that we can work together and we will.  It’s not a broken 
commission, just look at what’s going on; we’ve got a great city manager right now and there’s a lot of 
things happening for the betterment of Alamogordo.  Alamogordo will continue to thrive.  When you 
talked about Alamogordo not growing in the 1970’s, I remember the 1970’s because I was here.  I 
promise you it is growing.  Some will come up and talk about the restaurants and stuff that are here.  
There is a bunch more here now, and there’s a new Albertson’s going in.  We fight for that stuff and we 
have community advocates in the form of OCEDC who look to bring people in here.  It’s not like we’re 
aren’t fighting to grow Alamogordo.  There may have been a time in Alamogordo it did not want to grow, 



SEPTEMBER 9, 2014 CITY OF ALAMOGORDO REGULAR MEETING MINUTES PAGE 26 OF 28 

 
but it’s not here on this commission.  Anybody sitting here wants Alamogordo to grow.  I do believe face 
to face is a good thing, you bet, but there are times when you have to weigh what it costs the tax 
payers versus what the potential is.  There are times you have to think is there more to the situation 
than meets the eye, and many times there is.  I can assure you, this is one of those times.  The bottom 
line is this, and I would hope to get a little bit of understanding from all the citizens, from all the 
department heads and from everybody sitting here tonight, that this is a good commission and will be a 
great commission; we are going to continue and we’re not broken.  We’ll continue to do what’s right for 
Alamogordo, I promise you that. 
 
Commissioner Straface said I really appreciate your statements and many of the attempts to do that.  
My response would be to make a motion and follow up on what Mr. Hernandez said and see where we 
sit.  That’s all you have to do, make that motion and if there is a second you can get there if we’re not 
willing to come together and work. 
 
Mayor Galea asked Commissioner Straface what the motion was he was suggesting.  Commissioner 
Straface said Mr. Hernandez said there were two possibilities.   
 
Mayor Pro-Tem Rentschler asked the city attorney if he would talk about whether we could make it a 
motion and do anything that has not been advertised in advance.   
   
City Attorney Thies said the particular action advertised was Limited Personnel Matters (City 
Commission).  We were recessing, not adjourning into Executive Session.  We did have item #13 
where you consider and act upon any action that had been needed as a result of Executive Session.  
Whether if you make a motion, second and approve it, whether that violates the Open Meeting Act, I 
would have to make that assessment once I hear your motion.  Having said that, if it does potentially 
violate the Open Meetings Act, you always have the option to cure that violation by properly noticing 
your intended action at the next meeting and you take that action. 
 
Commissioner Hernandez said I will show this commission and this staff that’s here and the public how 
serious I am about what Dr. Straface brought to us.  I’ve actually made it my bible.  These are the two 
copies given to us and I carry them with me all the time because this is what we have to go by.  This is 
something brought to us and I really truly believe in this.  It’s not happening and several times I’ve 
called Dr. Straface and told him I cannot support this, because there’s one person I felt would not follow 
this, and that was yourself, Mayor.  Dr. Straface told me, well then there are two.  And my comment to 
him was, you are right.  Ever since then I have carried these with me because I am not going to be that 
person who does not follow this.   
 
Mayor Galea said we have not adopted any…… Commissioner Hernandez interrupted to say it doesn’t 
matter.  You don’t have to adopt something to follow it.   
 
Mayor Galea said how about answer an email, answer a phone call, answer a text message.  
Conversations go two ways and they’re often, I will say 95% of the time, one way conversations.  How 
do we build relationships with the commission if the mayor is constantly emailing, calling, texting 
without return?  Commissioner Hernandez asked her when she had not gotten a return from him?  She 
asked him when was the last time you sent me an email?  He said something about emails and she 
said I know.  Commissioner Hernandez said I don’t trust you.  She said ok, that’s your opinion.  He said 
it’s not an opinion, Madam Mayor, it’s a fact; I do not trust you, I’m telling you.  She said ok. 
 
Mayor Galea said there is an item on the floor – Limited Personnel Matters (City Commission).  If no 
action is taken then there will be no action taken. 
 
Commissioner Hernandez said I have made a motion.  I have asked the commission to look into hiring 
this person to come in and do the investigation and we will go off of their recommendation.  Mayor 
Galea asked who seconded and he said there was no second. 
 



SEPTEMBER 9, 2014 CITY OF ALAMOGORDO REGULAR MEETING MINUTES PAGE 27 OF 28 

 
Commissioner Hernandez asked for discussion.  He said Commissioner Straface said we wait until we 
get cool heads, discuss this, come back with some kind of fix because we do have to answer this one 
way or another; whether it’s we don’t care or whether it’s this is what we are going to do or this is what 
we’ve done.  Somehow we have to answer it.  He is correct.  I think a different time would be 
appropriate. 
 
Mayor Galea asked City Manager Stahle what action he had taken as city manager to answer the 
personnel matters.  City Manager Stahle said it depends on which one you are describing.  Mayor 
Galea said describe the hostile work environment ones, and he said there are several.  City Manager 
Stahle said that one made by an individual, we’ve had conversation with the individual.  Another put in 
writing by the Customer Services Department, I did send a notice, actually I sent a copy of the minutes 
of the last meeting at which you did make the statement, and I sent them a note saying that because 
commission is not an employee of the city manager, I’m in no position to take any action on 
commissioners.  He tried to remember about another individual one and said there were a few other 
items in the individual one that we discussed, but he couldn’t remember off the top of his head what 
they are.  He remarked he had some notes in his office.   
 
Mayor Galea said if there are no other questions or comments, Commissioner Hernandez has 
suggested we come back to this at another time.  Some commissioners said they supported that. 
 
Commissioner Hernandez moved to approve tabling this item to have them come up with ideas 
on how to address this and we deal with it at a future time. Mayor Pro-Tem Rentschler seconded 
the motion. Motion carried by a vote of 7-0-0.  
 
Mayor Pro-Tem Rentschler moved to approve to recess into Executive Session to discuss Sale, 
Acquisition, or Disposal of Real Property (Housing Authority Properties) at 10:20 p.m. 
Commissioner Hernandez seconded the motion.  
 
Mayor Galea asked the city attorney if they needed to recess or adjourn. City Attorney Thies told her 
depending on your direction, it would be appropriate to recess.  We’ll discuss the possible disposition of 
real estate and will be asking for some direction, and based on that direction this actually will come 
back at a future date for more formal action.   
 
Roll call vote was taken by the City Clerk. Motion carried by a vote of 7-0-0. 
 
 

RECONVENE INTO OPEN SESSION  
 
Mayor Galea reconvened the meeting at 10:41 p.m. 
 
Mayor Galea stated no items were discussed in executive session accept the Sale, Acquisition, 
or Disposal of Real Property (Housing Authority Properties) and no action will be taken. 
 
 
13. Consider, and act upon, any action that may be needed as a result of the Executive 

Session. 
No action was taken. 
 

  ADJOURNMENT  
 

Mayor Pro-Tem Rentschler moved to adjourn at 10:42 p.m. Commissioner Hernandez seconded 
the motion. Motion carried by a vote of 7-0-0.  

 



SEPTEMBER 9, 2014 CITY OF ALAMOGORDO REGULAR MEETING MINUTES PAGE 28 OF 28 

 
       

 

              

        Mayor Susie Galea 

 

ATTEST:  

 

       

City Clerk Reneé L. Cantin 

 

(Prepared by Nancy Jacobs, Deputy Clerk)  

Approved at the Regular Meeting held on September 23, 2014. 

 
 







































































hearle
Typewritten Text











































































































































- 1 - 

MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING BETWEEN 
THE CITY OF ALAMOGORDO, NEW MEXICO 

AND 
THE AMERICAN FEDERATION OF 

STATE, COUNTY, AND MUNICIPAL EMPLOYEES, LOCAL 3818 
 

This Memorandum of Understanding (the "Agreement") memorializes the agreement between 
the City of Alamogordo ("City") and the American Federation of State, County, and Municipal 
Employees, Local 3818 ("AFSCME").  The purpose of this Agreement is to memorialize the 
agreement between the City and AFSCME regarding the extension of the Collective Bargaining 
Agreement which expired on June 30, 2014. 

 
1. The parties agree that Section 7. Union Membership Dues Deductions, is amended to 
read as follows: 

A. Upon receipt of a voluntary authorization dues deduction card executed by 
an employee who is covered by this bargaining unit, the employee may have membership 
dues deducted by the City in accordance with the dues levied by the Union in accordance 
with its constitution and its by-laws.  Employees may cancel their dues deduction 
authorization at any time subject to a fifteen (15) working day written notice to the 
personnel office, which will then notify the union. 

B. The City agrees to forward to the Union all dues withheld pursuant to 
valid authorization cards.  Dues withheld will be forwarded to the Union each pay period. 

C. Should an issue arise as to the amount deducted, the City's only obligation 
is to present factual material as to the amount actually deducted. Any adjustment shall be 
handled strictly between the employee and the Union. 

D. The Union shall indemnify, defend and save the City harmless against any 
and all claims, demands, suits or any other forms of liability that shall arise out of or as a 
result of any conduct taken by the City for the purpose of complying with this section. 

E. Upon an employee’s separation of employment, union dues will not be 
withheld from an employee’s last paycheck unless specifically authorized in writing by 
the employee. 

F. In the event that 75% of the bargaining unit signs up for membership in 
the union, within 30 days of providing proof of reaching the necessary membership 
threshold, bargaining unit employees who are not members of the Union shall be required 
to pay a fee in lieu of dues, provided said fair share fee shall not exceed 85% of the 
regular dues attributable to being a member in the Union.  The fair share fee shall be 
transmitted to the Union in the same manner as are the payroll deducted dues for Union 
members.  

Exceptions. An employee who is a member of and adheres to established and 
traditional tenets or teachings of a bona fide religion, body, or sect which historically has 
held  conscientious objections to joining or financially supporting a labor organization, 
may meet this obligation by paying the equivalent of the fees to one of the organizations 
on the approved list. 



- 2 - 

The Union shall indemnify and hold the City harmless from all actions taken by 
the City in compliance with this provision. 

2. The parties agree that Section 27. Paid Time-Off (PTO), is amended to read as follows: 

Paid Time-Off (PTO) is available to cover employees’ needs for time away from 
work including: Vacation, Illness, or other leaves. 

Full Time Regular employees earn PTO hours based on the multiplier used times 
the hours paid each pay period, excluding overtime hours.  The longer an 
employee remains with the City of Alamogordo, the larger the multiplier will be, 
based on the table below.  Years of service are based on the date the employee 
was hired as a full-time regular to the anniversary date.  For example, from the 
hire date to the five year anniversary an employee receives 21.5 days per year; 
from the fifth anniversary until the six year anniversary, 22.5 days per year, etc. 
 

Years of Service PTO Days Accumulated Each Year Multiplier 

0-5 Years 21.5 0.082692308

6 Years 22.5 0.086538462

7 Years 23.5 0.090384615

8 Years 24.5 0.094230769

9 Years 25.5 0.098076923

10-15 Years 26.5 0.101923077

16 Years 27.5 0.105769231

17 Years 28.5 0.109615385

18 Years 29.5 0.113461538

19 Years 30.5 0.117307692

20 Years & Up 31.5 0.121153846

 
1. PTO hours are calculated and updated each biweekly pay period through 

the payroll system. 

2. Employees may not borrow against future PTO accruals or carry a 
negative PTO balance. 

3. PTO hours may be taken in increments as required and/or approved. 

4. Employees may only earn PTO hours up to the maximum per year listed 
in the calculation table above.  

5. Employees will not earn PTO hours for hours worked in excess of 2080 
per calendar year. 

6. The maximum amount of earned PTO hours employees can roll over at 
any fiscal year end is 480 hours. The exception is that on July 1, 2003 any 
employee having a balance in excess of 480 hours. In this case the July 1, 
2003 current PTO balance will serve as their maximum PTO roll over 
balance until the employee either separates service or their balance falls 
below 480 hours. At such time their balance falls below 480 hours their 
maximum limit then becomes 480 hours. Employees must plan ahead for 



- 3 - 

any unexpected illness by reserving a portion of their annual PTO hours 
each year. 

7. While employees will begin earning PTO hours upon hire, they are not 
eligible to use PTO until they have completed their first 6 months of Full 
Time employment. An exception will be granted and current hours made 
available if the employee provides documentation of illness signed by a 
licensed medical professional. 

8. Employees are expected to use PTO for all requested time off, with the 
exception of the specific guidelines regarding designated holidays.  

9. The PTO policy and procedures apply to both non-exempt-and exempt 
employees. 

10. Department Directors or designees, on a case-by-case basis, can only grant 
time off without pay. Any time taken with out pay will decrease PTO 
accrual for the year. 

11. It is important that you plan PTO use carefully so that appropriate 
replacements can be scheduled. Employees are responsible for requesting 
PTO in writing and submitting it to their supervisor for approval at least 
one (1) week in advance for all time off, except in those cases where 
advance notice is not possible i.e. hospitalization, family emergency. In 
the instance of an unplanned absence, the employee is responsible for 
making every effort to notify their supervisor at least one (1) hour before 
the beginning of their scheduled work period. 

A.  Employees may be subject to corrective action if they fail to give 
appropriate notice. 

B. If an employee calls in to report that they cannot work their 
scheduled hours because of illness or an emergency, they will be 
paid from their PTO balance.  

C. An absence shall be considered unauthorized whenever the 
employee’s supervisor, or their designee, has not been properly 
notified before the employee’s shift begins.  Responsibility for 
excusing an unauthorized absence shall rest with the immediate 
supervisor.  An unauthorized absence may be paid if PTO accruals 
are available and the supervisor has approved the unauthorized 
absence.  Unauthorized leave may also be recorded as leave 
without pay at the discretion of the supervisor. 

12. Employees may utilize up to 280 hours of PTO immediately prior to their 
retirement effective date. PTO in excess of 280 hours will be forfeited.   

 
13. Employees may be paid for up to 240 hours of their accrued PTO balance 
upon separation after they have completed their introductory period. 
 



- 4 - 

14. Employees may convert PTO hours for a cash payment at a rate of two (2) 
three (3) hours for two (2) three (3) hours for PTO balances over 240 
hours. 

A.  Employees may convert a maximum of 80 PTO hours per fiscal 
year for a cash payment at a rate of 2 hours pay for 3 hours of leave.  This 
conversion is only possible for PTO balances over 240 hours.  The 
minimum amount of hours employees may convert is 8 hours.  The 
maximum number of times an employee may convert leave during the 
fiscal year is four (4).  Request to convert leave must be submitted to 
Personnel at least seven (7) calendar days before the pay date the 
employee wishes to receive the payment. 

15. Department Directors or designee may request a doctor’s excuse when 
three (3) or more consecutive unscheduled absences have occurred. 

16. PTO will not be paid out to employees who leave before they are eligible 
to begin utilizing PTO during their first six 6 months of Full Time 
employment. 

17. If an employee is injured on the job during their introductory period they 
will have access to their available PTO leave balance to cover non-work 
time before workmen's compensation payments begin. Should the leave 
balance not be sufficient to cover the time, Leave-without-pay will be 
authorized. 

18. If an employee becomes ill while at work and leaves the work site before 
the end of their shift, accrued leave will be paid for the scheduled hours 
they were unable to complete before going on leave without pay. 

 
3. The parties agree that Section 36. Wages and Recreational Facilities Benefits, is 
amended to read as follows: 

Section 36. Wages and Recreational Facilities Benefits. 
A. Within 30 days of ratified of this agreement by both parties, a longevity 

payment of $750.00 will be paid to all employees who are covered by this bargaining unit 
who were employed by the City prior to July 1, 2013. 
 B. Employees shall be permitted to use the City’s recreational facilities and 
equipment, including the swimming pool, that are located at its Recreational Center at no 
cost to the Employee.  Family members and guests will be required to pay the normal 
charges.  Employees will be given a twenty percent (20%) discount on any recreational 
activity or other programs offered or sponsored by the City's Community Services 
Department.  The discount applies only to the participation of the employee, the 
employee’s spouse or the employee's minor dependent(s).  Participation at the discounted 
rate will only be available in the event the program has available space.  Employees shall 
given the "junior golf green fee rate" at the City's golf course, the Desert Lakes Golf 
Course.  Family members and guests will be required to pay the normal charges.  Rental 
charges for golf carts and other charges or fees will be at the normal rate. 

 
 



- 5 - 

4. Section 47. Terms of and Entire Agreement, is amended to read as follows: 
A. This Agreement constitutes the sole and entire existing agreement between 

the parties hereto and supersedes all prior agreement, oral or written between the Union 
and the City, and expresses all obligations of, and restrictions imposed on the City during 
the term of the Agreement. 

B. This agreement will become effective when both parties have signed it. 
The date this agreement is signed by the second party to sign it (as indicated by the date 
associated with that party’s signature) will be deemed the date of this agreement. If a 
party signs but fails to date a signature, the date that the other party receives the 
signing party’s signature will be deemed to be the date that the signing party signed 
this agreement.  This Agreement expires at 12:00 Midnight, June 30, 2015.  Should 
neither party to this Agreement request the opening of negotiations as provided for in the 
City's Labor Management Relations Ordinance, this Agreement and the conditions herein 
shall continue in effect from year to year.  Provided, however, no lump sum or other 
payments shall be made after June 30, 2015. 

 
8. Each party has had a reasonable opportunity to read this entire Agreement, to discuss its 
contents and meaning with a representative of their choosing, and that the terms of this 
Agreement are understood and voluntarily accepted. 
 
9. This Agreement becomes effective on the date of the final signature of the parties and/or 
their authorized representatives. 
 
CITY OF ALAMOGORDO    AMERICAN FEDERATION OF 
        STATE, COUNTY AND  
        MUNICIPAL EMPLOYEES 
 
 
____________________________   ____________________________ 
James R. Stahle      J.J. Lyons 
City Manager      President, Local 3818 
 
Dated:_______________________   Dated:________________________ 
 
 
              
        AFSCME Council 18 Representative 
 
        Dated:________________________ 
 
ATTEST:       APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
 
____________________________   ____________________________ 
Reneé L. Cantin, City Clerk    Stephen P. Thies, City Attorney 

























































5311 Pilot Project Ridership
Fy2013                             FY2014

Oct 12      475 Oct 13      763
Nov 12     390                                Nov 13     566
Dec 12     374                                Dec  13     759
Jan 13      385                                Jan 14       825
Feb 13     541                                Feb 14       806
Mar 13    447                                Mar 14      865
Apr  13    526                                Apr 14       923
May 13   380                                May 14      702 
June 13    392                               June 14      558
July  13    394                                July  14      658
Aug 13     614                                Aug 14      692
Sept 13    718                                Sept 14     >900 Month not 

yet reported       



What effect did  $1.00 Fare Increase have on 
Ridership?

Ridership has continued to increase due to rider
familiarity with route, word of mouth, and marketing.

However, would it have increased more if not  enacted? There is 
no way to determine.



What needs to be done to incorporate into 
Regular Fixed Route system?

We completed the Federal Transit Administration 5311 
Grant Application process for FY2015 in Nov of 2013. 
Funding was awarded in March of this year.

Beginning in October there is only one 5311 program. All 
routes are under the same funding stream. The pilot 
project is complete and is successful.



Who are the individuals using the pilot 
program?

We are seeing all walks of life ride this route.
The biggest category is college students at approximately
35%.
Next is Medical 
General ridership 
Shopping 

This year we added stops on Hwy 70 in Dona Ana County
and stopped using the Pan American center in order to add 
stops along University. 
We also added the new Multimodal  Center which has
increased our ridership to and from Alamogordo

The early route (6 am) now regularly has 15 to 20 riders
(11 to 16 for college) 



Who is contributing to pay the pilot program
and how does it compare to the other fixed 
route public transportation services?

Funding Sources:
Pilot                  Regular

City of Alamogordo                X                              X
Otero County                          X                          X
Mescalero Tribe                                                  X
City of Las Cruces                   X
NMSU                                      X
United Way                            X
Zia Endowment                     X                              X
FTA                                          X                   X
NMDOT



Z‐trans  Public Transportation
Statement of Revenues and 
Expenses for the period of

10‐1‐13 – 8‐31‐2014
Alamogordo Local/Federal match
Entire 5311 Alamo to Las Cruces

Entire 5311 Public/JARC 
Please note, the Federal Fiscal Year crosses two of 

Zia’s fiscal years



Description Alamogordo Only:   5311 Alamo to Las Cruces 
10-1-13 - 6-30-14

 70 - City of 
Alamogordo  75 - NMDOT  Total 

   4200 ‐ Public Transportation‐Fed Share ‐$                            34,111.49$                    34,111.49$                
   4290 ‐ LC Pilot Transportation 7,499.97$               ‐$                                    7,499.97$                   

Total Revenue 7,499.97$               34,111.49$                    41,611.46$                

      1350 ‐ Transportation Dispatcher 279.18$                   1,529.28$                       1,808.46$                   
      1375 ‐ Bus Drivers 2,170.71$               10,345.35$                    12,516.06$                
      1420 ‐ Chief Financial Officer 83.35$                      457.56$                           540.91$                        
      1430 ‐ Business Office staff 355.00$                   2,212.01$                       2,567.01$                   
      2100 ‐ Workmen's Compensation 162.64$                   817.94$                           980.58$                        
      2200 ‐ FICA 174.01$                   858.28$                           1,032.29$                   
      2220 ‐ Medicare 40.81$                      200.88$                           241.69$                        
      2300 ‐ Major Medical/Vision Plan 4.87$                         26.68$                              31.55$                           
      2350 ‐ Employee/Board Liability Ins. 48.91$                      290.05$                           338.96$                        
      2400 ‐ NM State Unemployment Tax 26.61$                      129.30$                           155.91$                        
      2450 ‐ NM W.C. Personal Assessment 1.42$                         6.99$                                 8.41$                              
      5600 ‐ Telephone 27.57$                      166.30$                           193.87$                        
      6040 ‐ Professional Tuition/Conference Fees/Training 2.49$                         12.90$                              15.39$                           
      6070 ‐ Audit Fees 13.06$                      71.52$                              84.58$                           
      6100 ‐ Vehicle Tires 50.99$                      249.45$                           300.44$                        
      6200 ‐ Vehicle Gas & Oil 3,004.89$               16,693.52$                    19,698.41$                
      6250 ‐ Shop Supplies 3.02$                         16.55$                              19.57$                           
      6300 ‐ Vehicle Repairs 630.75$                   3,504.22$                       4,134.97$                   
      6400 ‐ Vehicle Insurance 317.79$                   1,307.13$                       1,624.92$                   
      6450 ‐ Vehicle Registration/ License Fees 6.69$                         12.51$                              19.20$                           

Total Expenditure 7,404.76$               38,908.42$                    46,313.18$                

Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) ‐$                            ‐$                                    ‐$                                 

Excess (deficiency) of revenues and other financing
   sources over expenditures and other financing uses 95.21$                      (4,796.93)$                     (4,701.72)$                  

Fund Balance, Beginning of year 10,473.95$            44,380.80$                    54,854.75$                

Fund Balance, End of year 10,569.16$       39,583.87$            50,153.03$          

This reflects Alamogordo’s 
contribution to the 5311 
Alamo to Las Cruces route, 
formally known as “the 
Pilot”.  In addition, fund‐75 
are the federal dollars 
generated from the local 
matches.  

This income statement 
comes directly from our 
accounting software.  

This is for the period 10‐1‐13 
through 6‐30‐14.  Nine 
months of operation. The 
next slide shows the next 
two months.

Transportation is a cost 
reimbursement, which 
means only actual costs are 
reimbursed, no more.  There 
is no profit for Zia.  

Only operational costs are 
charged to the Alamo to Las 
Cruces service. 

Most importantly,  the 
majority or funds are 
expended in Alamogordo.



Description Alamogordo Only:  5311 Alamo to Las Cruces 
7/1/14 - 8/31/14 

 70 - City of 
Alamogordo  75 - NMDOT  Total 

   4200 ‐ Public Transportation‐Fed Share ‐$                     7,427.72$           7,427.72$          
   4290 ‐ LC Pilot Transportation 1,666.66$           ‐$                     1,666.66$          

Total Revenue 1,666.66$           7,427.72$           9,094.38$          

      1350 ‐ Transportation Dispatcher 56.32$                310.49$              366.81$             
      1370 ‐ Vehicle Servicer 13.08$                217.30$              230.38$             
      1375 ‐ Bus  Drivers 398.31$              2,182.85$           2,581.16$          
      1420 ‐ Chief Financial  Officer 18.56$                101.68$              120.24$             
      1430 ‐ Business  Office staff 77.88$                429.72$              507.60$             
      2100 ‐ Workmen's  Compensation 30.61$                174.62$              205.23$             
      2200 ‐ FICA 33.11$                190.49$              223.60$             
      2220 ‐ Medicare 7.68$                   44.57$                52.25$               
      2350 ‐ Employee/Board Liabil ity Ins. 2.32$                   13.58$                15.90$               
      2400 ‐ NM State Unemployment Tax 4.54$                   25.92$                30.46$               
      2450 ‐ NM W.C. Personal  Assessment 0.52$                   2.85$                   3.37$                  
      5200 ‐ ZTC Maintenance/Building Repairs 9.10$                   48.88$                57.98$               
      5600 ‐ Telephone 4.58$                   24.22$                28.80$               
      6040 ‐ Professional  Tuition/Conference Fees/Training 9.00$                   49.41$                58.41$               
      6200 ‐ Vehicle Gas  & Oil 719.92$              3,999.53$           4,719.45$          
      6300 ‐ Vehicle Repairs 302.36$              422.34$              724.70$             
      6400 ‐ Vehicle Insurance 40.02$                159.38$              199.40$             

Total Expenditure 1,727.91$           8,397.83$           10,125.74$       

Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) ‐$                     ‐$                     ‐$                    

Excess (deficiency) of revenues and other financing
   sources over expenditures and other financing uses (61.25)$               (970.11)$             (1,031.36)$        

Fund Balance, Beginning of year (10,487.82)$       (15,800.03)$       (26,287.85)$      

Fund Balance, End of year (10,549.07)$    (16,770.14)$    (27,319.21)$    

The amounts listed  here are still 
in the Federal Fiscal Year but 
reflected in our new fiscal year.

The period reflected is 7‐1‐14 
through 8‐31‐14.

It is also important to note that 
the City is sharing the 50% local 
match with Otero County,  City of  
Las Cruces, NMSU, United Way 
and Zia Endowment.

In looking at the entire year for 
the Alamo to Las Cruces route; 
10‐1‐13 through 8‐31‐14:
The City of Las Cruces and NMSU 
pre paid there share, $10,000 
each.  This is why the total 
Excess/(deficiency) of revenues  
shows a profit of $4,365.54 as of 
8‐31‐14. 
$6,881.41+($2,515.87) = 
4,365.54.

By the end of September it will 
zero out.  

The last two slides below show all 
Public and JARC 5311 
transportation.



Description 5311 Alamo to Las Cruces 10/1/13 - 6/30/14  10 - GENERAL 
 70 - City of 

Alamogordo  75 - NMDOT 
 80 - Otero 

County   82 - NMSU 
 90 - City of Las 

Cruces  Total 

   4000 - United Way 4,845.89$          -$                    -$                    -$                    -$                    -$                    4,845.89$          
   4040 - Zia Endowment-Donation 1,620.69$          -$                    -$                    -$                    -$                    -$                    1,620.69$          
   4200 - Public Transportation-Fed Share -$                    -$                    34,111.49$       -$                    -$                    -$                    34,111.49$       
   4210 - Fares Public Trans. 13,800.00$       -$                    -$                    -$                    -$                    -$                    13,800.00$       
   4290 - LC Pilot Transportation (498.26)$            7,499.97$          -$                    7,499.99$          10,000.00$       10,000.00$       34,501.70$       

Total Revenue 19,768.32$       7,499.97$          34,111.49$       7,499.99$          10,000.00$       10,000.00$       88,879.77$       

      1350 - Transportation Dispatcher 412.92$             279.18$             1,529.28$          279.01$             279.17$             279.01$             3,058.57$          
      1375 - Bus Drivers 3,775.68$          2,170.71$          10,345.35$       2,695.54$          2,695.46$          2,695.46$          24,378.20$       
      1420 - Chief Financial Officer 123.65$             83.35$               457.56$             83.51$               83.52$               83.52$               915.11$             
      1430 - Business Office staff 579.87$             355.00$             2,212.01$          355.10$             301.07$             462.55$             4,265.60$          
      2100 - Workmen's Compensation 316.51$             162.64$             817.94$             218.60$             218.25$             219.30$             1,953.24$          
      2200 - FICA 289.22$             174.01$             858.28$             203.51$             200.06$             210.18$             1,935.26$          
      2220 - Medicare 67.47$               40.81$               200.88$             47.39$               46.89$               49.07$               452.51$             
      2300 - Major Medical/Vision Plan 7.09$                  4.87$                  26.68$               4.69$                  4.65$                  4.98$                  52.96$               
      2350 - Employee/Board Liability Ins. 77.37$               48.91$               290.05$             48.91$               48.06$               48.51$               561.81$             
      2400 - NM State Unemployment Tax 43.91$               26.61$               129.30$             31.04$               30.43$               31.70$               292.99$             
      2450 - NM W.C. Personal Assessment 2.27$                  1.42$                  6.99$                  1.70$                  1.67$                  1.74$                  15.79$               
      5600 - Telephone 38.54$               27.57$               166.30$             27.75$               94.37$               27.54$               382.07$             
      6040 - Professional Tuition/Conference Fees/Training 3.58$                  2.49$                  12.90$               2.19$                  2.48$                  2.49$                  26.13$               
      6070 - Audit Fees 19.31$               13.06$               71.52$               13.06$               13.06$               13.06$               143.07$             
      6100 - Vehicle Tires 58.72$               50.99$               249.45$             37.75$               50.99$               50.99$               498.89$             
      6200 - Vehicle Gas & Oil 4,674.18$          3,004.89$          16,693.52$       3,004.88$          3,004.75$          3,004.71$          33,386.93$       
      6250 - Shop Supplies 4.47$                  3.02$                  16.55$               3.02$                  6.06$                  -$                    33.12$               
      6300 - Vehicle Repairs 981.17$             630.75$             3,504.22$          630.76$             630.75$             630.70$             7,008.35$          
      6400 - Vehicle Insurance 41.05$               317.79$             1,307.13$          317.79$             312.66$             312.71$             2,609.13$          
      6450 - Vehicle Registration/ License Fees 0.25$                  6.69$                  12.51$               3.06$                  3.06$                  3.06$                  28.63$               

Total Expenditure 11,517.23$       7,404.76$          38,908.42$       8,009.26$          8,027.41$          8,131.28$          81,998.36$       

Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) -$                    -$                    -$                    -$                    -$                    -$                    -$                    

Excess (deficiency) of revenues and other financing
   sources over expenditures and other financing uses 8,251.09$          95.21$               (4,796.93)$        (509.27)$            1,972.59$          1,868.72$          6,881.41$          

Fund Balance, Beginning of year 1,293,495.25$  10,473.95$       44,380.80$       -$                    -$                    -$                    1,348,350.00$  

Fund Balance, End of year 1,301,746.34$  10,569.16$       39,583.87$       (509.27)$            1,972.59$          1,868.72$          1,355,231.41$  



Description 5311 Alamo to Las Cruces 7/1-14-8/31/14
 10 - 

GENERAL 
 70 - City of 

Alamogordo  75 - NMDOT 
 80 - Otero 

County   82 - NMSU 
 90 - City of 
Las Cruces  Total 

   4000 ‐ United Way 693.22$              ‐$                     ‐$                     ‐$                     ‐$                     ‐$                     693.22$             
   4040 ‐ Zia Endowment‐Donation 176.97$              ‐$                     ‐$                     ‐$                     ‐$                     ‐$                     176.97$             
   4200 ‐ Public Transportation‐Fed Share ‐$                     ‐$                     7,427.72$           ‐$                     ‐$                     ‐$                     7,427.72$          
   4210 ‐ Fares  Public Trans. 3,395.00$           ‐$                     ‐$                     ‐$                     ‐$                     ‐$                     3,395.00$          
   4290 ‐ LC Pilot Transportation ‐$                     1,666.66$           ‐$                     2,375.00$           ‐$                     ‐$                     4,041.66$          

Total Revenue 4,265.19$           1,666.66$           7,427.72$           2,375.00$           ‐$                     ‐$                     15,734.57$       

      1350 ‐ Transportation Dispatcher 245.56$              56.32$                310.49$              80.58$                56.26$                56.34$                805.55$             
      1370 ‐ Vehicle Servicer 52.33$                13.08$                217.30$              18.68$                66.60$                66.61$                434.60$             
      1375 ‐ Bus Drivers 420.22$              398.31$              2,182.85$           567.64$              398.33$              398.35$              4,365.70$          
      1420 ‐ Chief Financial  Officer 19.56$                18.56$                101.68$              26.44$                18.56$                18.56$                203.36$             
      1430 ‐ Business  Office staff 81.52$                77.88$                429.72$              111.96$              77.88$                77.88$                856.84$             
      2100 ‐ Workmen's  Compensation 34.98$                30.61$                174.62$              43.62$                33.13$                33.19$                350.15$             
      2200 ‐ FICA 48.12$                33.11$                190.49$              47.17$                36.38$                36.42$                391.69$             
      2220 ‐ Medicare 11.28$                7.68$                   44.57$                11.09$                8.48$                   8.56$                   91.66$               
      2350 ‐ Employee/Board Liability Ins. 2.72$                   2.32$                   13.58$                3.50$                   2.32$                   2.32$                   26.76$               
      2400 ‐ NM State Unemployment Tax 6.56$                   4.54$                   25.92$                6.38$                   4.94$                   4.96$                   53.30$               
      2450 ‐ NM W.C. Personal  Assessment 0.78$                   0.52$                   2.85$                   0.72$                   0.54$                   0.53$                   5.94$                  
      5200 ‐ ZTC Maintenance/Building Repairs 9.49$                   9.10$                   48.88$                12.90$                9.09$                   8.40$                   97.86$               
      5600 ‐ Telephone 4.82$                   4.58$                   24.22$                6.43$                   4.58$                   4.30$                   48.93$               
      6040 ‐ Professional  Tuition/Conference Fees/Training 11.52$                9.00$                   49.41$                10.98$                9.00$                   8.97$                   98.88$               
      6200 ‐ Vehicle Gas  & Oil 802.07$              719.92$              3,999.53$           1,037.70$           719.92$              719.93$              7,999.07$          
      6300 ‐ Vehicle Repairs 363.94$              302.36$              422.34$              408.74$              302.36$              302.35$              2,102.09$          
      6400 ‐ Vehicle Insurance ‐$                     40.02$                159.38$              40.02$                39.32$                39.32$                318.06$             

Total Expenditure 2,115.47$           1,727.91$           8,397.83$           2,434.55$           1,787.69$           1,786.99$           18,250.44$       

Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) ‐$                     ‐$                     ‐$                     ‐$                     ‐$                     ‐$                     ‐$                    

Excess (deficiency) of revenues and other financing
   sources over expenditures and other financing uses 2,149.72$           (61.25)$               (970.11)$             (59.55)$               (1,787.69)$         (1,786.99)$         (2,515.87)$        

Fund Balance, Beginning of year 1,296,115.62$   (10,487.82)$       (15,800.03)$       (1,134.59)$         (417.52)$             (680.87)$             1,267,594.79$  

Fund Balance, End of year 1,298,265.34$ (10,549.07)$    (16,770.14)$    (1,194.14)$      (2,205.21)$      (2,467.86)$      1,265,078.92$ 



De sc r i pt i on 5 3 11 P ubl i c / J ARC 10 / 1/ 2 0 13  -  

0 6 / 3 0 / 14  10  -  GENERAL  3 5  -  M EDI CAI D  

 7 0  -  C i t y  of  

A l a mogor do  7 5  -  NM DOT  8 0  -  Ot e r o Count y   

 8 5  -  M e sc a l e r o 

Apa c he  Tr i be   Tot a l  

   4040 -  Zia Endowment -Donat ion 5,265.94$                                                       -$                                                                        -$                                                                        -$                                                                        -$                                                                        -$                                                                        5,265.94$                                                       

   4190 -  Public Transport at ion -  Local Share -$                                                                        -$                                                                        69,851.76$                                                    -$                                                                        8,582.71$                                                        134,360.17$                                                 212,794.64$                                                

   4200 -  Public Transport at ion-Fed Share -$                                                                        -$                                                                        -$                                                                        300,762.27$                                               -$                                                                        -$                                                                        300,762.27$                                               

   4210 -  Fares Public Trans. 57,490.50$                                                   330.00$                                                             -$                                                                        -$                                                                        -$                                                                        -$                                                                        57,820.50$                                                   

   4220 -  J.A.R.C. Transport at ion -$                                                                        -$                                                                        -$                                                                        10,550.44$                                                    6,224.22$                                                       -$                                                                        16,774.66$                                                    

   4380 -  NMDOT - Capit al 5311/ 5310 (80%) -$                                                                        -$                                                                        -$                                                                        1,117.12$                                                           -$                                                                        -$                                                                        1,117.12$                                                           

Tot a l  Re v e nue 62,756.44$                                                   330.00$                                                             69,851.76$                                                    312,429.83$                                                14,806.93$                                                    134,360.17$                                                 594,535.13$                                                

      1100 -  Chief  Execut ive Of f icer 244.72$                                                             -$                                                                        1,186.92$                                                         13,887.96$                                                    1,442.69$                                                        1,863.20$                                                        18,625.49$                                                    

      1300 - Transport at ion Direct or -$                                                                        -$                                                                        1,866.06$                                                        22,911.66$                                                     -$                                                                        3,861.72$                                                        28,639.44$                                                   

      1325 - Trans. Operat ions Supervisor -$                                                                        -$                                                                        -$                                                                        9,119.01$                                                          -$                                                                        9,118.85$                                                         18,237.86$                                                    

      1350 - Transport at ion Dispat cher -$                                                                        -$                                                                        3,942.41$                                                        16,136.19$                                                      -$                                                                        12,193.89$                                                     32,272.49$                                                   

      1375 - Bus Drivers 1,418.64$                                                         -$                                                                        39,775.05$                                                   80,074.38$                                                   3,349.00$                                                       36,374.21$                                                    160,991.28$                                                 

      1420 - Chief  Financial Of f icer 152.83$                                                              -$                                                                        1,099.62$                                                        13,290.99$                                                    901.62$                                                              1,959.48$                                                        17,404.54$                                                    

      1955 - Maint enance/ Janit orial -$                                                                        -$                                                                        598.20$                                                             1,410.24$                                                         -$                                                                        812.09$                                                              2,820.53$                                                       

      2100 - Workmen's Compensat ion 58.80$                                                                 -$                                                                        2,726.13$                                                        5,780.48$                                                       165.52$                                                              2,652.27$                                                       11,383.20$                                                     

      2200 - FICA 111.62$                                                                -$                                                                        2,950.26$                                                       9,452.93$                                                       347.95$                                                             3,915.54$                                                        16,778.30$                                                    

      2220 - Medicare 26.20$                                                                 -$                                                                        690.11$                                                               2,210.74$                                                        81.45$                                                                  915.70$                                                              3,924.20$                                                       

      2300 - Major Medical/ Vision Plan 3.01$                                                                      -$                                                                        48.32$                                                                 306.89$                                                             12.54$                                                                  95.56$                                                                 466.32$                                                             

      2350 - Employee/ Board Liabilit y Ins. 358.80$                                                             -$                                                                        426.45$                                                             5,388.31$                                                        299.13$                                                              519.57$                                                              6,992.26$                                                       

      2400 - NM St at e Unemployment  Tax 16.19$                                                                   -$                                                                        428.56$                                                             1,399.15$                                                         50.80$                                                                 591.66$                                                              2,486.36$                                                       

      2450 - NM W.C. Personal Assessment 1.13$                                                                       -$                                                                        27.28$                                                                 72.47$                                                                 2.35$                                                                     35.46$                                                                 138.69$                                                              

      5150 - Rent  Expense 694.44$                                                             -$                                                                        -$                                                                        2,778.00$                                                       -$                                                                        -$                                                                        3,472.44$                                                       

      5200 - ZTC Maint enance/ Building Repairs -$                                                                        -$                                                                        100.63$                                                              688.73$                                                             -$                                                                        576.04$                                                             1,365.40$                                                        

      5320 - Elect r icit y Ut ilit y 20.51$                                                                  -$                                                                        1,175.42$                                                         2,580.84$                                                       220.51$                                                              1,175.48$                                                         5,172.76$                                                        

      5340 - Wat er Ut ilit y 1.69$                                                                      -$                                                                        224.09$                                                             474.29$                                                             24.71$                                                                  224.00$                                                             948.78$                                                             

      5360 - Gas Co. Ut ilit y 2.57$                                                                     -$                                                                        160.92$                                                              342.84$                                                             18.50$                                                                  160.90$                                                              685.73$                                                             

      5380 - Wast e/ Trash Pickup Ut ilit y 11.07$                                                                   -$                                                                        335.50$                                                             724.04$                                                             43.09$                                                                 334.94$                                                             1,448.64$                                                        

      5600 - Telephone 12.85$                                                                  -$                                                                        198.08$                                                              2,475.03$                                                       78.41$                                                                  399.69$                                                             3,164.06$                                                        

      6010 - Meals & Lodging -$                                                                        -$                                                                        221.11$                                                                717.58$                                                              -$                                                                        502.47$                                                             1,441.16$                                                          

      6040 - Prof essional Tuit ion/ Conf erence Fees/ Training -$                                                                        -$                                                                        280.69$                                                             872.67$                                                             5.04$                                                                     520.46$                                                             1,678.86$                                                        

      6050 - Dues/ License/ Fees/ Manuals 0.48$                                                                     -$                                                                        93.87$                                                                 420.41$                                                              -$                                                                        145.11$                                                                659.87$                                                             

      6070 - Audit  Fees 178.00$                                                              -$                                                                        150.00$                                                              1,940.00$                                                        42.00$                                                                 190.00$                                                              2,500.00$                                                       

      6090 - St af f  Travel/ Mileage Reimb. 0.09$                                                                     -$                                                                        355.09$                                                             1,219.59$                                                         7.17$                                                                      429.80$                                                             2,011.74$                                                         

      6100 - Vehicle Tires -$                                                                        -$                                                                        1,253.45$                                                        2,996.28$                                                       -$                                                                        1,742.88$                                                        5,992.61$                                                        

      6150 - Vehicle Paint ing -$                                                                        -$                                                                        300.00$                                                             362.50$                                                             -$                                                                        62.50$                                                                 725.00$                                                             

      6200 - Vehicle Gas & Oil 1,028.89$                                                        -$                                                                        15,377.48$                                                    69,835.32$                                                   7,495.02$                                                       12,941.66$                                                     106,678.37$                                                

      6250 - Shop Supplies 0.85$                                                                     -$                                                                        549.85$                                                             2,002.05$                                                       19.97$                                                                  1,326.90$                                                        3,899.62$                                                       

      6300 - Vehicle Repairs 243.70$                                                             -$                                                                        5,003.67$                                                       34,361.84$                                                    526.45$                                                             24,890.86$                                                   65,026.52$                                                   

         6225 -  Replacement  Part s -$                                                                        -$                                                                        -$                                                                        406.22$                                                             -$                                                                        282.90$                                                             689.12$                                                              

      6350 - Vehicle Radio Repeat er Cost s -$                                                                        -$                                                                        609.74$                                                             1,219.21$                                                          -$                                                                        609.83$                                                             2,438.78$                                                       

      6400 - Vehicle Insurance -$                                                                        -$                                                                        3,374.46$                                                       40,192.51$                                                     2,254.27$                                                       4,597.50$                                                       50,418.74$                                                    

      6450 - Vehicle Regist rat ion/  License Fees 3.63$                                                                     -$                                                                        174.75$                                                              331.13$                                                               19.74$                                                                  133.00$                                                              662.25$                                                             

      6615 - Small Equipment / Comput er repair -$                                                                        -$                                                                        -$                                                                        68.23$                                                                 -$                                                                        27.76$                                                                 95.99$                                                                 

      6620 - Of f ice Supplies 102.57$                                                              -$                                                                        515.72$                                                              3,439.14$                                                        -$                                                                        607.03$                                                             4,664.46$                                                       

      6625 - Unif orms -$                                                                        -$                                                                        229.74$                                                             605.02$                                                             -$                                                                        602.38$                                                             1,437.14$                                                         

      6630 - Post age & Shipping -$                                                                        -$                                                                        50.99$                                                                 433.38$                                                             -$                                                                        57.37$                                                                 541.74$                                                              

      6635 - Pr int  & Phot ocopying -$                                                                        -$                                                                        238.54$                                                             1,732.46$                                                        -$                                                                        448.07$                                                             2,419.07$                                                        

      6655 - Drug & Alcohol Test ing -$                                                                        -$                                                                        8.05$                                                                     85.37$                                                                 -$                                                                        12.50$                                                                  105.92$                                                              

      6665 - Promot ional & Advert ising 28.87$                                                                 -$                                                                        136.52$                                                              1,578.17$                                                         -$                                                                        237.61$                                                              1,981.17$                                                          

      7240 - Equipment  Purchases -$                                                                        -$                                                                        -$                                                                        1,117.12$                                                           -$                                                                        -$                                                                        1,117.12$                                                           

Tot a l  Ex pe ndi t ur e 4,722.15$                                                        -$                                                                        86,883.73$                                                   357,441.37$                                                17,407.93$                                                    128,148.84$                                                 594,604.02$                                               

Tot a l  Ot he r  Fi na nc i ng S our c e s ( U se s) -$                                                                        -$                                                                        -$                                                                        -$                                                                        -$                                                                        -$                                                                        -$                                                                        

Ex c e ss ( de f i c i e nc y )  of  r e v e nue s a nd ot he r  f i na nc i ng

   sour c e s ov e r  e x pe ndi t ur e s a nd ot he r  f i na nc i ng u 58,034.29$                                                   330.00$                                                             (17,031.97)$                                                  (45,011.54)$                                                  (2,601.00)$                                                     6,211.33$                                                         (68.89)$                                                              

Fund Balance, Beginning of  year 1,293,495.25$                                          121,802.46$                                                 10,473.95$                                                    44,380.80$                                                   -$                                                                        39,555.08$                                                   1,509,707.54$                                          

Fund Ba l a nc e ,  End of  y e a r 1, 3 5 1, 5 2 9 . 5 4$              12 2 , 13 2 . 4 6$                  ( 6 , 5 5 8 . 0 2 )$                    ( 6 3 0 . 7 4 )$                        ( 2 , 6 0 1. 0 0 )$                    4 5 , 7 6 6 . 4 1$                    1, 5 0 9 , 6 3 8 . 6 5$             



D escr ip t io n 53 11 Pub lic/ JA R C  7/ 1/ 14  -  8 / 3 1/ 14  10  -  GEN ER A L  3 5 -  M ED IC A ID  
 70  -  C it y o f  
A lamo g ord o   75 -  N M D OT 8 0  -  Ot ero  C o unt y  

 8 5 -  M escalero  
A p ache T rib e  T o t al 

   4040 - Zia Endowment-Donat ion 1,170.60$                          -$                                  -$                                  -$                                  -$                                  -$                                  1,170.60$                          
   4190 - Public Transportat ion - Local Share -$                                  -$                                  19,230.75$                       -$                                  3,249.99$                        29,340.57$                      51,821.31$                         
   4200 - Public Transportat ion-Fed Share -$                                  -$                                  -$                                  72,568.18$                       -$                                  -$                                  72,568.18$                       
   4210 - Fares Public Trans. 13,741.50$                        120.00$                            -$                                  -$                                  -$                                  -$                                  13,861.50$                        
   4220 - J.A.R.C. Transportat ion -$                                  -$                                  -$                                  2,104.32$                         -$                                  -$                                  2,104.32$                         

T o t al R evenue 14,912.10$                        120.00$                            19,230.75$                       74,672.50$                       3,249.99$                        29,340.57$                      141,525.91$                       

      1100 - Chief  Execut ive Off icer -$                                  -$                                  266.72$                            3,348.36$                        -$                                  570.36$                            4,185.44$                         
      1300 - Transportat ion Director -$                                  -$                                  414.84$                            5,266.64$                        -$                                  901.84$                            6,583.32$                        
      1325 - Trans. Operat ions Supervisor 50.66$                              -$                                  -$                                  2,127.76$                          -$                                  2,077.10$                          4,255.52$                         
      1350 - Transportat ion Dispatcher 62.70$                              -$                                  861.87$                             3,531.85$                          -$                                  2,558.93$                         7,015.35$                          
      1370 - Vehicle Servicer -$                                  -$                                  -$                                  106.58$                             -$                                  53.52$                               160.10$                             
      1375 - Bus Drivers 810.04$                            -$                                  8,685.38$                        16,932.98$                      260.35$                            7,177.07$                           33,865.82$                      
      1420 - Chief  Financial Off icer -$                                  -$                                  244.36$                           3,094.12$                         -$                                  529.16$                             3,867.64$                        
      1955 - M aintenance/Janitorial -$                                  -$                                  130.96$                            400.16$                            -$                                  269.19$                            800.31$                            
      2100 - Workmen's Compensat ion 35.13$                               -$                                  398.17$                             2,030.04$                        11.41$                                 1,528.03$                         4,002.78$                        
      2200 - FICA 62.99$                              -$                                  646.61$                            2,092.48$                        15.95$                                820.88$                           3,638.91$                         
      2220 - M edicare 14.74$                               -$                                  151.22$                              489.29$                           3.74$                                 191.94$                             850.93$                            
      2350 - Employee/Board Liability Ins. 72.14$                               -$                                  51.20$                               1,307.80$                         -$                                  490.62$                           1,921.76$                          
      2400 - NM  State Unemployment Tax 8.36$                                -$                                  84.74$                              278.30$                            2.07$                                 111.92$                              485.39$                            
      2450 - NM  W.C. Personal Assessment 1.21$                                  -$                                  10.52$                               27.70$                               0.19$                                 13.22$                               52.84$                              
      5150 - Rent Expense 158.40$                             -$                                  -$                                  635.80$                            -$                                  -$                                  794.20$                            
      5200 - ZTC M aintenance/Building Repairs -$                                  -$                                  47.48$                              392.38$                           -$                                  344.87$                            784.73$                            
      5320 - Electricity Ut ility -$                                  -$                                  465.82$                            1,021.56$                          89.99$                              465.96$                            2,043.33$                        
      5340 - Water Ut ility -$                                  -$                                  60.11$                                131.84$                             11.67$                                60.01$                               263.63$                           
      5360 - Gas Co. Ut ility -$                                  -$                                  12.73$                               27.93$                              2.48$                                12.75$                                55.89$                               
      5380 - Waste/Trash Pickup Ut ility -$                                  -$                                  80.21$                               175.95$                              15.53$                                80.13$                               351.82$                             
      5600 - Telephone 23.94$                              -$                                  31.69$                               400.03$                           -$                                  57.07$                               512.73$                             
      6010 - M eals & Lodging -$                                  -$                                  -$                                  125.22$                             0.64$                                124.59$                             250.45$                            
      6040 - Professional Tuit ion/Conference Fees/Training -$                                  -$                                  67.68$                              267.49$                            19.02$                               66.60$                              420.79$                            
      6090 - Staff  Travel/M ileage Reimb. -$                                  -$                                  -$                                  3.15$                                  3.15$                                  -$                                  6.30$                                
      6100 - Vehicle Tires -$                                  -$                                  104.04$                            695.80$                            -$                                  591.72$                             1,391.56$                          
      6200 - Vehicle Gas & Oil 452.39$                            -$                                  4,848.21$                         15,207.14$                        1,952.39$                         8,858.88$                        31,319.01$                        
      6250 - Shop Supplies -$                                  -$                                  -$                                  142.96$                            -$                                  142.83$                            285.79$                            
      6300 - Vehicle Repairs 43.85$                              -$                                  4,039.81$                         7,701.84$                          102.31$                             2,258.41$                         14,146.22$                       
         6225 - Replacement Parts -$                                  -$                                  150.00$                             527.43$                            -$                                  377.28$                            1,054.71$                           
      6350 - Vehicle Radio Repeater Costs -$                                  -$                                  129.16$                             258.32$                            -$                                  129.12$                             516.60$                             
      6400 - Vehicle Insurance -$                                  -$                                  935.39$                            10,316.82$                       499.88$                           1,144.29$                          12,896.38$                      
      6615 - Small Equipment/Computer repair -$                                  -$                                  -$                                  34.71$                               -$                                  18.26$                               52.97$                               
      6620 - Off ice Supplies 20.47$                              -$                                  28.11$                                523.39$                            -$                                  126.90$                            698.87$                            
      6630 - Postage & Shipping -$                                  -$                                  21.32$                               181.94$                             -$                                  24.45$                              227.71$                             
      6635 - Print  & Photocopying -$                                  -$                                  36.08$                              422.02$                           -$                                  69.42$                              527.52$                             
      6665 - Promotional & Advert ising -$                                  -$                                  72.40$                              875.04$                            -$                                  146.35$                             1,093.79$                         
      6699 - Prior Year Expense 23.82$                              -$                                  -$                                  -$                                  -$                                  -$                                  23.82$                              

T o t al Exp end it ure 1,840.84$                         -$                                  23,076.83$                      81,102.82$                       2,990.77$                         32,393.67$                      141,404.93$                     

T o t al Ot her F inancing  So urces ( U ses) -$                                  -$                                  -$                                  -$                                  -$                                  -$                                  -$                                  

Excess ( d ef iciency)  o f  revenues and  o t her f inancing
   so urces o ver  exp end it ures and  o t her  f inancing  uses 13,071.26$                        120.00$                            (3,846.08)$                      (6,430.32)$                      259.22$                            (3,053.10)$                        120.98$                            

Fund Balance, Beginning of year 1,296,115.62$                   104,549.82$                    (10,487.82)$                     (15,800.03)$                     (1,134.59)$                         45,501.83$                       1,418,744.83$                  

F und  B alance, End  o f  year 1,3 0 9 ,18 6 .8 8$      10 4 ,6 6 9 .8 2$         ( 14 ,3 3 3 .9 0 )$         ( 2 2 ,2 3 0 .3 5)$         ( 8 75.3 7)$               4 2 ,4 4 8 .73$          1,4 18 ,8 6 5.8 1$       














	Addendum
	Agenda (3) 
	1) Presentation - All Natural Hazard Mitigation Plan
	2) Minutes Approval
	09-09-2014 Minutes (28)

	3) Lodger's Tax Expenditures 
	4) TABDL - Mister A
	Application (2)
	State Application (4) 

	5) Res. 2014-45 Budget Adjustment 
	Res. 2014-45
	All Funds Summary (3)
	Revision Detail (8)
	Schedule of Budget Adjustments

	6) Res. 2014-52 NMDOT	Airport Master Plan Grant
	Grant Application (11)
	Res. 2014-52

	7) Res. 2014-53 Grant Agreement USDA
	Res. 2014-53 (2)
	Spreadsheet
	Grant Agreement (17) 

	8) Ord. 1473 Rezoning 2118 N. Florida - FINAL
	Ord. 1473 (2)
	Record of Decision

	9) Otero Co. Agreements for ASC
	Transportation of Seniors Agreement (3) 
	RSVP Program (3)
	Home Bound Meals - La Luz (3)

	10) Intergovernmental Agreement with APS (6)
	11) Fire Protection Fund Grant
	12) RFP 2014-006 Security Guard Services
	13) Roadway Functional Classifications
	Presentation (10) 

	A-1) MoU with AFSCME
	MOU (5) 

	14) Public Hearing - Liquor License - Albertsons
	Letter from Alcohol & Gaming
	Application (2)
	Zoning Statement
	Posting Certificate
	Letter to Applicant
	Notice of Public Hearing

	15) Extension to Zia Therapy Center Agreement 
	Current Agreement (5) 
	Fare Structure Booklet (8)
	Insurance
	Ridership Figures for Las Cruces (2)
	Ztrans Presentation (13)

	16) 24th St. Culverts
	17) Request to release Utility Lien - 1408 Challenger
	Back up documents (3) 

	18) Boards & Committees



